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2010 ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SCUD Group Limited (the “Company™) is
pleased to announce the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010. This announcement, containing the full text of the
2010 annual report of the Company (“2010 Annual Report”), complies with the relevant requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
relation to information to accompany preliminary announcements of annual results. This annual results
announcement and the 2010 Annual Report will be available for viewing on the websites of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and of the Company at www.scudcn.com.
The printed version of the 2010 Annual Report will be delivered to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders™).
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the year ended 31 December 2010
(RMB million except where otherwise stated)

Turnover

Profit from Operations

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
Total Assets

EBITDA

Basic Earnings Per Share (RMB cents)

Diluted Earnings Per Share (RMB cents)
Current Ratio (Times)

Quick Ratio (Times)

Total Debt to Equity Ratio (%)

Cash Position

Proposed Final Dividend Per Share (HKD cents)

2010

1,527.4
70.3
54.4

1,771.7

158.5
5.27
5.22

2.8
2.3
6.7
414.2

2009

1,264.9
56.3
46.8

1,498.6

152.3
4.55
4.51

4.0
3.4
0.9
481.8
2.0

% Change

20.8
24.8
16.0
18.2
4.1
15.8
15.7
(30.0)
(32.4)
5.8 pts
(14.0)
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CORPORATE PROFILE
NG

SCUD Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 01399) (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading manufacturer
of rechargeable battery packs and related accessories for mobile phones,
notebook computers and digital cameras in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"” or “China”). The Group also engaged in manufacture and sale
of lithium bare battery cells for mobile phones since 2010.

The principal operating businesses of the Group include the Group's own
“SCUDFRERR " brand and “Chaolitongi& /738" brand business, original
equipment manufacturing (“OEM"”) business and upstream battery cell
business.

The Group has been focusing on business expansion over the years.
Through two of its own-brand “SCUDFR=EHER" and “Chaolitongi /138",
the Group expanded its businesses of production and sales of rechargeable
battery packs, chargers and related accessories for mobile phones,
notebook computers and digital cameras. Our two own-brands, “SCUD
FRERR" and “Chaolitong#d 1738 ", are specifically targeted at high-end
market and second to third-tier cities as well as the rural market. The
Group launched a wide range of products in response to market demand
catering for the needs of different groups of consumers. Currently, the
Group's market share in the PRC accounts for approximately 20.8%
which secured its leading position. During the year from 1 January
2010 to 31 December 2010 (the “Review Period”), the number of first-
tier distributors of the Group has exceeded 565, with approximately
50,000 points of sales, covering all major and most second-tier cities
in China.

Apart from its own-brand business, the Group also sells battery products
by way of OEM, which has gained the trust of well-known customers
such as Huawei and ZTE. During the Review Period, the Group also
became one of the battery suppliers in China for large mobile phone
manufacturers such as Foxconn and BBK Electronics. In addition, the
Group strived to expand the upstream battery cell business since 2010
by combining technological breakthrough and capital to strengthen its
core competitiveness as well as to protect the Group’s brand advantage
in the industry.

With the development of the mobile phone market in worldwide countries
and the accelerated growth of the 3G market, SCUD plans to continue
expanding overseas markets in recent years in order to further enhance
product sales volume and to develop its brand to an international brand,
so to promote future sales and sustained profit growth.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(RMB million except where otherwise stated)

BE-EZ-ZF+-A=t+t-RHLEFE

(BREAZHI - LABARKEIIR)

2010 2009 % Change
—E-ZF ZEENF ZHBEL
Turnover e 1,527.4 1,264.9 20.8
Profit from Operations R A 70.3 56.3 24.8
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders RRARIEDRFFAA
of the Company JEAR 4 R 54.4 46.8 16.0
Total Assets BEHRE 1,771.7 1,498.6 18.2
EBITDA REFHFE - BIE - ER
3l 158.5 152.3 4.1
Basic Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) FRERAEF (ARES) 5.27 4.55 15.8
Diluted Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) GRESZN (ARES) 5.22 4.51 15.7
Current Ratio (Times) mEIEE (F) 2.8 4.0 (30.0)
Quick Ratio (Times) RE)LE (%) 23 3.4 (32.4)
Total Debt to Equity Ratio (%) B EFARE R 2 & (%) 6.7 09 58pts/ANE
Cash Position BWaAR 414.2 481.8 (14.0)
Proposed Final Dividend
Per Share (HKD cents) RBRAREE (B - 2.0 -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ATEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 39, Kuaian Technology Zone

Mawei Economic and Technology Development Zone

Mawei District, Fuzhou
Fujian Province, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 5505, 55/F Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Fang Jin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Huang Yan

Zhang Li

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA)

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Fang Jin
Yeung Mun Tai
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LEGAL ADVISER

Reed Smith Richards Butler

AUDITORS

Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Loke Yu (Chairman)
Wang Jing Zhong
Wang Jian Zhang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Loke Yu (Chairman)
Fang Jin
Wang Jing Zhong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fujian Haixia Bank
China Merchants Bank
China Construction Bank

WEBSITE

http://www.scudcn.com
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Dear shareholders,
MBI -

On behalf of the board (the “Board"”) of directors of SCUD
Group Limited (“SCUD", the “Company” or, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company for the full year from
1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010 (the “Review
Period"”).

AANERRREREBER AR (TRER] . [ARF Ik
EREMBARAIAEEDEFE(EFEDIMARSE
ARBR-_E—EF—A—HE_ZT-—ZEF+-_A=1+—
A2F([EEMEDNFEERE -

Fang Jin Chairman

& T/

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2010, the Chinese economy showed signs of rapid recovery and
growth, with the China mobile phone market showing steady growth
respectively. According to the latest statistics from the market analyst
Analysis International, the sales volume of the overall China mobile
phone market was 246 million phones in 2010, with the mobile phone
penetration rate reaching 64.4%, an increase of 8.1% since the end of
2009. With the size of mobile phone sales market expecting to reach 286
million phones in 2011, the booming development in the mobile phone
market is expected to drive demand for the corresponding rechargeable
batteries.

The Group has achieved overall satisfactory performance during the
Review Period. Compared with 2009, the Group recorded turnover and
profit attributable to the equity holders of about RMB1,527 million
and RMB54.35 million respectively, an increase of 20.8% and 16.0%,
respectively, and basic earnings per share were approximately RMB5.27

cents.

E 3 )
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BHNFHDSEECKETRINER - RETS
MABBIERENENSF;  —E—ZFHhETF
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FHEL - EEBERERFAEARBGGENEEOAR
15278 I R ARKES5,4358 7T H Bl K20.8%
516.0%  FAGRERBFBARES 2710 -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRHEE

With the Company’s safe and high quality products, as well as its
reputation and brand awareness that has been established throughout
the years, the Group’s own-brand and original equipment manufacturer
("OEM") businesses both continued to maintain stable growth during
the Review Period.

During the Review Period, the Group continued to inject capital to
replace and upgrade its production equipment, increase the proportion
of automated equipment in order to reduce labour pressure and improve
product manufacture efficiency. In order to meet the increasingly
diversified market needs, the Group has focused its research and
development (“R&D") effort by manufacturing various safe and long-
lasting battery products targeting various models and categories of
electronic products available in the market. The Group’s own-brand
products have approximately 20.8% of the market share and with over
50,000 sales points distributed throughout China covering all major and
most second-tier cities, the Group’s products’ brands enjoyed a stable
and leading position in the industry. For the OEM business, the Group
has always enjoyed good working relationship with well-known brands
like Huawei and ZTE; and the rapid business expansion in the mainland
market by these large telecommunication manufacturers also ensured
the steady growth of the Group’s OEM business. On the other hand,
the Group is continuing the long-term business partnership with Sanyo
and Sony as their high quality lithium battery cell supplies protected the
Group’s brand advantage in the industry.

In 2010, the Group was also striving to expand the upstream bare battery
cell business in order to reduce cost, stabilize product profit margin
and strengthen core competitiveness. Our bare battery cell laboratory
located in Fuzhou has already commenced test production. During the
Review Period, the Group has proceeded to incorporate a new subsidiary,
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde"), which will
be wholly controlled by Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.. Dongguan
Hongde would further expand the Group’s development in upstream
bare battery cell business and the Dongguan bare battery cell factory is
expected to begin test production in April 2011, which would greatly
increase the Group’s bare battery cell production capacity.
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During the Review Period, the labour cost in China, especially the rapid
increase in low-end labour market and the manpower shortage in the
Pearl River Delta and Yangtze River Delta have received more attention.
At the same time, inflation has to a certain extent, increased pressure
to the China market. Faced with the hardships and challenges brought
by external economic circumstances, the Group actively adjusted its
development strategy to further consolidate and develop the Group’s
core business, maintain stable growth in our own-brand and OEM
businesses, as well as achieve stable positive growth in our products’
market share.

Looking ahead, the policies outlined in the PRC Government's 12th
Five-Year Plan would provide strong support for the “new energy” and
“new materials” industries platforms, and the safe and effective Lithium
battery industry will continue to be the future focus of the market.
Also, with the development of the mobile phone market in China, the
increase in popularity in mobile phone usage, the accelerated growth
of the 3G market, along with the rapid boom of the mobile internet
market, there are plenty of opportunities and room for the rechargeable
batteries market to grow. The Group will also continue to focus on
its core business in the production and sales of rechargeable battery,
increase investment in the continuous maintenance and improvement
of our production equipment, in order to strengthen our business and
technological advantages, so to promote future sales and sustain profit
growth.

On the other hand, with the rapid development of the Internet in China in
recent years, the direct sales model in e-commerce has gradually matured.
The Group will also inject more capital to create a three-dimensional
network marketing model that combines the real world with the virtual
world, utilizing the development opportunities of e-commerce to improve
the brand image of the Group’s own-brand products, thereby creating
new profit growth for the Group.

In order to further enhance product sales volume and to develop it's brand
to an international brand, SCUD plans to continue expanding overseas
markets. As the economies of the world gradually recover, the demand
for mobile phone worldwide has also resumed positive growth. In the
future, the Group will leverage the solid foundation and leading position
of its own-brand business in the China market to expand into other Asian
markets. It will further enhance the Group’s branding to international
standards by developing and integrating resources of the global market,
in turn strengthening the Group’s overall competitiveness.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRHEE

Without the diligent and hard work of all the staff at SCUD, the
cooperation and joint efforts of all our upstream and downstream
business partners, and the trust and support of our customers, we would
not have accomplished the development and growth that the Group has
achieved over the past year.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to the Group’s business partners and customers for their
continued support and trust. Also, | would also like extend my sincere
thanks to the Board, senior management and all our staff for their
dedication and hard work.

Fang Jin
Chairman

Fuzhou, the PRC
24 March 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®& D

Over 50,000 points of sales across the PRC
B & 3t /Y 85 5 B8 #8.50,0001E

Market share in PRC of approximately 208%
HENTIEHREN520.8%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W RO

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
BBREEE

2005-2010 CAGR
2005-2010F FHEA B R X

4 16.66%

Turnover & 3£ %8

2005 707,000,000

2006 936,300,000

2007 960,900,000

2008 1,252,700,000
2009 1,264,900,000
2010 1,527,400,000

SEGMENT TURNOVER
DEERE

Mobile phone battery packs

BEEFEME
Chargers

Other mobile phone peripherals

Hibh BB EEERER

Il Digital product battery packs
HISEME A

60.2%

OWN-BRAND BUSINESS
BA mER%

Percentage of own-brand sales
over total turnover
BAmEHE
FREEEED
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2005-2010 CAGR
2005-2010F FHEA B R X

412.11%

Gross Profit £ (Gross Profit Margin EF%)

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

147,300,000 (20.8%)

240,500,000 (25.7%)

243,500,000 (25.3%)

263,800,000 (21.1%)

229,100,000 (18.1%)

260,800,000 (17.1%)

Notebook computer battery packs
ERAEHEDAE

Mobile phone battery packs
BEEEE A

Other mobile phone peripherals
HihBEEEBEERM

Chargers

_ FJ%
Others

6.7%

284%

OEM BUSINESS

OEM 3§

Percentage of OEM Battery Cell

sales Business

over total turnover EREK

OEMiH%E Percentage of battery cell

HREEER DL sales over total turnover
EHE e EER
B



Annual Sales Volumes of Own-Brand Rechargeable Mobile Phone Batteries

BAmEBHER - AREELEFHEHE

Ten thousands pieces & %

2005 T I '+
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2007 IEEE) ) BEETD 140
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Economy series Standard series Gold series
EEED BRERT © A7
INDUSTRY REVIEW

After the impact of the global financial turmoil, the Chinese economy
showed signs of rapid recovery and growth in 2010. Aided by a sound
economic environment, China’s telecommunication industry saw a more
rapid development, with the Internet and other digital media seeing an
increasing penetration rate. According to the statistics published by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (MIIT) in 2010, mobile
phone users increased by approximately 112 million in 2010, the highest
record of user numbers growth, and reached approximately 859 million.
The mobile phone penetration rate reached 64.4%, representing an
increase of 8.1% since the end of 2009. Besides, according to the latest
statistic from market analyst, Analyst International, the sales volume of
the overall China mobile phone market was 246 million phones in 2010,
of which the sales of smartphone exceeded 60 million, its penetration rate
rose from 8.4% in the last quarter of 2009 to 12.9% in the 4th quarter
of 2010, making it the core momentum that drove the development of
the mobile phone market.

Total Sales Volume #ASHE
18,580,851

22,937,453
24,975,748

43,075,559

50,251,162

56,216,330

Business series

EEEsdl
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

The 27th Statistical Reports on the Internet Development in China
released by China Internet Network Information Center (CNNIC) reviewed
that, as at November 2010, China’s net citizen population has reached
450 million, an increase of 66 million since 2009 and growth of 20.3%,
whereas the rate of internet penetration has reached 33.9%. According
to statistics from the 2010 Survey of Chinese SMEs in Network Marketing
(ZZ—ZFPER/NPEBRERITHASHSE), 2010 Research Report of
China Online Video Applications (== —Z 5 B 47 R 48 B8 45 S8 FE FA AT
FLHR ) and 2010 Research Report of Mobile Phone Online Behavior of
China’s Internet users (ZZE—ZFHPEFRFE EBITAMRMRSE), as
at December 2010, the amount of net citizens in China reached 303
million people, with the proportion of mobile phone internet users rising
sharply from 60.8% in 2009 to 66.2%. The rapid development of the
wireless internet market and the growth of mobile phone users drove
users’ demand in mobile internet content and service. Technical support
was the major factor that supported the development of the wireless
network, with high capacity and advance and safe batteries being the
fundamental basis, whereas the increase rate of replacement of batteries
have created opportunities for growth in the sales of batteries.

As the leading manufacturer in rechargeable batteries in China, SCUD
provides comprehensive battery solutions for the mobile digital products
by providing competitive pricing, an extended brand marketing network
and advanced manufacturing scale. During the financial year from 1
January 2010 to 31 December 2010 (“Review Period”), in order to meet
the increasing demand of the rechargeable battery market, the Group
has adjusted its development strategy accordingly. We have increased
our investment to strengthen our own-brand and OEM business to fully
utilize market opportunities. Furthermore, the Group has also actively
expanded for business growth, striving to improve the technical standard
of the Group’s core battery production by employing professional
and experienced research and development (“R&D") team, advanced
production facilities and strict quality control.
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Although China’s economy experienced recovery growth in 2010, the
Group’s overall businesses faced challenges because of the rising rate
of inflation throughout the year, as well as increasing labour cost.
During the Review Period, the Group continued to pursue a steady
development strategy while achieving stable growth. Through its two
own-brands “SCUDFRERR" A~ ChaolitongiB 738", the Group was able
to achieve substantial market share in the high, medium and low-end
of the rechargeable battery market. Also, the economic recovery and
growth that occurred during the Review Period also helped to drive up
consumer demand, which in turn led to a steady rise in orders and sales
for the Group’s OEM business.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB1,527 million, an increase of 20.8% from last
year. Gross profit and profit attributable to the equity holders was
approximately RMB261 million and RMB54.35 million, respectively, an
increase of 13.8% and 16.0% from the same period last year, and gross
margin of approximately 17.1%, a slight drop of about 1% from last
year. The profit margin attributable to the equity holders of the Group
accounted for about 3.6% (2009: 3.7%).

“SCUDFRERR" and “ChaolitongiB 773" are the Group’s two major own-
brands, with “SCUDFREER” targeting at the medium to high-end market
and “ChaolitongiB 138" targeting at the medium to low-end market.
As the brand awareness of the Group’s products gradually increased,
and given that the recovery of the domestic market was driving demand
upwards, the Group’s own-brands managed to perform well during the
year. Looking back, the sales volume of our own-brand mobile phone
rechargeable batteries increased by approximately 11.9% to about 56.22
million units (2009: 50.25 million units), turnover contributed by the
sales of own-brand mobile phone batteries amounting to approximately
RMB836 million (2009: RMB794 million), of which 84.5%(2009: 86.3%)
of the sales of own-brand mobile phone batteries were derived from
"SCUDFERE" brand and the remaining 15.5% (2009: 13.7%) were
derived from “Chaolitongi 7" brand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

During the Review Period, the China mobile phone market saw remarkable
growth, as well as a gradual increase in the penetration of the use of
mobile phones. Customers’ demand in product quality such as battery
safety and long-lasting use has also increased correspondingly. The
Group has continued to consolidate the development its core own-brand
business through R&D capacity and brand influence in order to meet
diversified market demands.

This year, the Group continued to focus on brand building, with its
product sales network covering all major cities and most of the second
tier cities in the country. We will continue to improve and renovate the
interiors of our sales distribution network and branch offices, so to
protect our sales performance and brand promotion. As at 31 December
2010, we have set up a over 6,000 retail points in SCUD’s brand image.
In addition, the Group has placed much emphasis on product quality,
imposing the highest requirement on safety standards. By providing
the best quality and safest battery products to our customers, we have
gained the trust and loyalty of consumers.

In recent years, the rapid rise of large telecommunication equipment
manufacturers like Huawei and ZTE has brought the Group’s OEM business
a steady increase. As at 31 December 2010, our OEM Business reached
approximately RMB434 million (2009: RMB297 million), accounting for
28.4% (2009: 23.5%) of total turnover. Sales volume of mobile phone
batteries in the Group’s OEM business reached approximately 14.54
million units (2009: 6.6 million units), an increase of approximately
121.6% from 2009.

During the Review Period, the increased cash injection by the Group
to upgrade production equipment and the increased percentage of
automated equipment has helped to reduce our labour pressure, as well
as increase productivity. Not only did these measures raise our Group'’s
overall technical levels, but also provided powerful support for our long-
term business development.

The Group has always enjoyed good working relationship with well-known
brands like Huawei and ZTE. On the other hand, we are continuing the
long-term business partnership with Sanyo and Sony as their high quality
lithium battery cell supplies protected the Group’s brand advantage in
the industry.
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During the Review Period, the Group strived to expand the upstream
battery cell business by combining technological breakthrough and capital
to strengthen our core competitiveness.

The Group’s new battery cell factory in Fuzhou has commenced test
production with satisfactory progress. In the meantime, the Group has
proceeded to incorporate Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Hongde"), which will be wholly controlled by Shenzhen Hongde Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Hongde”) and the Dongguan Hongde battery
cell factory will commence test production in April 2011. Upon the
commencement of production at the Dongguan Hongde battery cell
factory, it is expected that the existing production capacity of Shenzhen
Hongde battery cell factory will greatly increase. The development of
the Group’s upstream battery cell business will be further consolidated
and the industry chain of the Group will be enhanced.

The Fuzhou provincial government has proposed the development
strategy for the new development zone during the Review Period, which
led the Fuzhou Mawei area to launch the Mawei new town planning
works soon after. The project would transform Mawei from a single
economic and technological development zone to a new town with
comprehensive infrastructure. The Group’s new battery cell factory in
Fuzhou was located at the redevelopment zone of Mawei area. In line
with government strategies and Mawei’s new town plans, the Group has
been actively and effectively communicating and negotiating with the
local government regarding issues such as land auctions etc. since the
Mawei New Town Plans was launched in July 2010. Through visionary
insights and proactive responses made by the Group, as well as the
protection of statutory regulations such as the National Property Law
that safeguard the interests of enterprises, the Group believes that the
implementation of policies has caused minimal impact on the Group’s
business.

2011 is a year full of new hope and promises. The Group will continue
to uphold our philosophy of achieving stable growth and development,
improve profitability through research and development, production and
marketing, and further consolidate and improve the Group’s market
position and strengthen the Group's brands’ impact.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded consolidated
turnover of approximately RMB1,527.4 million (2009: RMB1,264.9
million), increased by approximately 20.8% as compared to that in 2009.
Gross profit and profit from operations for 2010 were approximately
RMB260.8 million (2009: RMB229.1 million) and approximately RMB70.3
million (2009: RMB56.3 million) respectively, increased by approximately
13.8% and approximately 24.8% respectively as compared to that in
2009. The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for 2010
increased by 16.0% to approximately RMB54.4 million (2009: RMB46.8
million). The Group recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB158.5 million
for the year, representing an increase of approximately 4.1% as compared
to that in 2009. Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2010 were approximately RMB5.27 cents (2009: RMB4.55 cents per
share).

Turnover

Mobile phone rechargeable batteries remain the major revenue driver of
the Group. During the year, sales of mobile phone batteries generated
from the own-brand business segment and OEM business segment
has contributed approximately RMB835.8 million (2009: RMB794.3
million) and approximately RMB345.2 million (2009: RMB150.4 million)
respectively, which represents approximately 54.7% (2009: 62.8%)
and approximately 22.6% (2009: 11.9%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover respectively.

Total sales of notebook computer batteries generated from the own-
brand business segment and OEM business segment has contributed
approximately 4.0% (2009: 8.9%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover
in 2010. Approximately 5.1% (2009: 8.5%) of the Group’s turnover in
2010 was generated from the sales of chargers. In addition, on 20 April
2010, the Group invested RMB50 million in Shenzhen Hongde Battery
Co., Ltd., which is one of the leaders in manufacturing of high-end
lithium bare battery cells in China. Sales of approximately RMB102.9
million was contributed by the upstream bare battery cells manufacturing
business for the period from 20 April 2010 to 31 December 2010.
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Segment Results

In 2010, the major portion of the Group’s revenue still came from the
Group’s own-brand business segment. Total revenue from the Group’s
own-brand business accounted for approximately 60.2% of the Group’s
total turnover during the year (2009: 71.0%) and the percentage of total
revenue from the Group’s OEM business accounted for approximately
28.4% of the Group’s total turnover (2009: 23.5%) during the year
ended 31 December 2010. Total revenue from the Group’s bare battery
cells business segment accounted for approximately 6.7 % of the Group’s
total turnover (2009: N/A).

Total revenue contributed by the own-brand business segment to the
Group for 2010 increased by approximately 2.3% to approximately
RMB919.4 million. Approximately 77.7% (2009: 77.5%) of the Group’s
own-brand products were sold under the “SCUDRERR" brand and
approximately 22.3% (2009: 22.5%) were sold under the “Chaolitongi&
138" brand. During the Review Period, inflation has to a certain extent,
increased pressure to the China market. The rapid increase in labour cost
and the manpower shortage in China had led to a general increase in
production cost for the own-brand products during the Review Period.
The profit margins of the mid to low-end series products were particularly
affected. Although the own-brand mobile phone batteries suffered
margin drop during the Review Period, the sales volume of own-brand
mobile phone batteries grew by approximately 11.9%. Over the year
ended 31 December 2010, the total revenue from the sales of own-brand
mobile phone batteries amounted to approximately RMB835.8 million
(2009: 794.3 million), increased by approximately 5.2% as compared with
2009. Revenue from own-brand digital camera batteries and notebook
computer batteries amounted to approximately RMB4.6 million (2009:
RMB3.3 million) and approximately RMB0.2 million (2009: RMB1.3
million), respectively, and sales of own-brand chargers amounted to
approximately RMB75.5 million in 2010 (2009: RMB98.3 million).

For the OEM business segment, the total revenue contributed to the
Group increased by approximately 45.9% from approximately RMB297.2
million in 2009 to approximately RMB433.6 million in 2010. The rapid
rise of large telecommunication equipment manufacturers like Huawei
and ZTE has brought the Group’s OEM business a steady growth. The
turnover of OEM mobile phone batteries significantly increased by
approximately 130.0% to approximately RMB345.2 million in 2010, and
the sales volume of OEM mobile phone batteries grew by approximately
121.8% in 2010. However, revenue generated from the sales of OEM
notebook computer batteries dropped by approximately RMB49.3 million
to approximately RMB61.8 million as compared with 2009.

o EBHELE
RZZ—FTF  AEBRUREHNEZEBHMREARE

EHEEmEEBRS>B - RBEE_ZE-—ZF+=
R=+—HLEFE AEEGEMEEBHEK
BIEAERFNLREEENC02% (ZTZNEF
71.0%)  MAEEOEMEBAMEAEEBLEEELD
28.4%(ZZZTNEF : 23.5%) - AEBMENESEHE
EAREEBELEENCT%(ZETNF « TEA) °

HEBRBEBRI>BME  AEER_ZT—ZFH
W ﬂu,%@2.3%i,‘SAE%919,400,0007g o K
EE77.7% (ZZEZNF :775%)WEBEMEE
ma LATSCUDTRERR | fnh B R AR B £922.3% (=
T TN F 1 22.5%) LAl ChaolitongiB 77 18 | i hg 1
o REIEHM - BIRT—ERE LI MEFREN
SRR o BB R ARG MR AP B A A R

EENEEREERREEAMNEEKR KL R
me BB RINEMNEMNETLEZZE -BEES
MEBHEEE NN EFNENEESREATY® 86
MIERBEE T EIEMNE11.9% o 7 B FEH
MEEREEEEETHHENBRSHAARE
835,800,0007t( = & h.F : A K %794,300,000
L) BEETAFEMN52% - BF REEIEE
BEMRECABREBNBESRORARE
4,600,000C( = F N4F : AR®3,300,0007T) &
A AE¥E200,0007T(ZEZTNEF ¢ ARKE1,300,000
7)) MEBmMMETE a%iﬁﬁﬁfj TFEHNABAR
#75,500,000T( —E ZT I & : A K %#98,300,000
JT) °

EJEOEM%‘*’MWQ REER —ZFHHE
Wil —ET N F W\Eﬁ%zw,zoo,ooomg &
45.9%% #) A R #433,600,0007T » ZE A& F1 & E3@
MERBEERBEIEFIRRIERL - FH T AELE
OEMEEIIES L7+ - OEMT M E M A & £ 5 A1
EINA130.0%E =T —FF 4§ AR ¥345,200,000
T ffﬁowﬁ%% MHEER T -—TFEREY
121.8% ° C HHEOEME L AT I B M E £ U
g g *iﬂiTﬁﬂﬁ/\EMw 300,0007CE 4 A
R¥61,800,0007T °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Sales of approximately RMB102.9 million was contributed by the upstream
bare battery cells manufacturing business for the period from 20 April
2010 to 31 December 2010.

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB1,266.6
million in 2010 (2009: RMB1,035.8 million), representing an increase
of approximately 22.3% as compared to 2009. During the Review Period,
direct materials, direct labour and other production costs accounted for
approximately 87.9% (2009: 90.4%), 4.7% (2009: 3.6%) and 7.4%
(2009: 6.0%) of the cost of sales.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group dropped by 1.0% from
approximately 18.1% for 2009 to approximately 17.1% for 2010.

For the Group’s own-brand business, the overall gross profit margin for
2010 was approximately 18.9%, down by 1.5 percentage points from
approximately 20.4% in 2009. Although China’s economy experienced
recovery growth in 2010, the overall gross profit margin dropped because
of the rising rate of inflation throughout the year, as well as increasing
labour cost. The average gross profit margin for own-brand mobile phone
batteries declined from approximately 21.6% in 2009 to approximately
19.9% in 2010. The gross profit margins for mobile phone batteries
of “SCUDRFERR"” brand and “Chaolitongia /738" brand in 2010 were
approximately 20.0% (2009: 22.4%) and approximately 11.3% (2009:
16.3%), respectively.

For the OEM business, the overall gross profit margin in 2010 was
approximately 15.6% (2009: 15.6%). The gross profit margin for OEM
mobile phone batteries increased from approximately 15.2% in 2009
to approximately 15.5% in 2010 while the gross profit margin for OEM
notebook computer batteries increased from approximately 10.8% in
2009 to approximately 16.9% in 2010.

For the bare battery cells business, the gross profit margin in 2010 was
approximately 17.8% (2009: N/A).

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

In 2010, the Group recorded profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately RMB54.4 million (2009: RMB46.8 million)
and the profit margin attributable to equity holders of the Company
was approximately 3.6% (2009: 3.7%).
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Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB76.0 million
(2009: RMB77.6 million) accounted for approximately 5.0% (2009:
6.1%) of the Group’s turnover in 2010. In order to upgrade the image
of sales channel and enhance the brand image, the Group has been
carrying out retail counters renovations since 2007. By the end of 2010,
approximately 6,000 retail counters were refurbished and an accumulated
amount of approximately RMB102.3 million was invested in the sales
channel image enhancement. Hence, selling and distribution expenses
of 2010 comprised of approximately RMB35.5 million (2009: RMB47.5
million) being the expenses incurred for the amortisation of all renovation
spending. In addition, approximately RMB18.1 million (2009: RMB14.1
million) was spent on advertising and promotion in 2010.

Administrative expenses of approximately RMB124.1 million (2009:
RMB100.0 million) accounted for approximately 8.1% (2009: 7.9%)
of the Group’s turnover in 2010. Administrative expenses mainly
comprised of R&D expenses of approximately RMB33.1 million (2009:
RMB23.6 million), staff salaries of approximately RMB19.8 million (2009:
RMB13.2 million), depreciation of approximately RMB10.1 million (2009:
RMB8.5 million), and approximately RMB10.4 million (2009: RMB10.4
million) being amortisation of intangible assets mainly arising from
acquisition of “Chaolitongi#8 /738" . In addition, an impairment loss on the
“Chaolitongi#B 138" brand of RMB18.2 million (2009: RMB16.6 million)
was charged to the consolidated income statement in 2010.

Finance costs of approximately RMB2.1 million (2009: RMB1.4 million)
mainly represent interest on bank borrowings.

Other revenue of approximately RMB11.1 million (2009: RMB6.7 million)
in 2010 comprised of approximately RMB3.3 million (2009: RMB4.7
million) being bank interest income, approximately RMB2.0 million (2009:
RMBO.3 million) being foreign exchange gain and approximately RMB4.3
million (2009: Nil) being negative goodwill recognised as income during
the Review Period.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December 2010
was approximately RMB414.2 million, decreased by RMB67.6 million (at
31 December 2009: RMB481.8 million). The Group maintained a net cash
position of approximately RMB230.8 million net of bank borrowings and
pledged bank deposits for banking facilities, decreased by approximately
RMB149.6 million as compared to the net cash as at 31 December 2009.

S MDA K A R#76,000,000L( Z T A
F: AR¥77,600,00070)thAEEBR T —TF
HEERELHS5.0% (ZEZTNF 6.1%) - BREFHE
ERREREIMNEREESR  A"EBE ST LF
B—EHTEEEOETHN HE-T—TFE-
#6,000RTEJEM B EE - MIEAREHER
mEZ RN ES 2O R A K 102,300,000
oAl RZE—ZTFHNHEERSERAREFR B
157 #) AR ¥35,500,000t( ZEFENF: AR
47,500,0007C) B BT E RIEH S EITEHATE £
BRI —E-TFENEEREFERZIAORA
[R#18,100,0007T( ZZ T N 4F : AR 14,100,000
JL) ©

THHESZHAR124,100,0007t( ZETNF - A
[R#100,000,0007 MG A EBA T —TFHE
BHH81% (ZTETAF 1 79%) - THHALTFER
FEERFAERI L ARY3S 100,000 (ZF
NF - AR¥23,600,00000)  ETHESHARE
19,800,0007C(=ZFF h4: AKH13,200,0007T) *
EH AREE10,100,000( ZFEFENF: AR
8,500,0007T) & = ZE U #E[ Chaolitongid h il i E
EREREEBHEHOARE10,400,000L( =22 A,
F: AR ®10,400,0007T ) © Itk 5h + [Chaolitongita
T R P E K R E S s A K #18,200,0007T
(ZZETNF: AR¥16,600,0000) =T —FF
fRE R P -

BEKALH ANREE2,100,000t( ZEZTNE : AR
#51,400,0007T) E BIRIRITERFE -

7 B8 BRI ) H A I A #9 AR #511,100,000L (==
ThEF - ARM6,700,00070) BIERZE—TF AN
SRITFBURA L AR EES,300,0007C (T HE : A
R #4,700,0007T) - SMNE Wz £ A R #52,000,0007T
(ZZZHE - ARUE300,00087T) KABRBWA
HEEBEHAREAL300,000T(ZBTHE  T) -

RBESRBEER
AEEFRENERBAEEEERIARE
67,600 ooo%%:?f?¢+—ﬂ =t+—HHAR
#414,200,000(R_ETNF+_A=+—8:
AR#481,800,0007T) « NEFEMIFR S FHEHA
R #230,800,000 L (B BITEE RIETHE W
BEERRITFER)  B_ETANFT+_A=+T—H



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

The Group continued to maintain a strong liquidity position with low
gearing and healthy cash flows. The Group generated a net cash inflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB33.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: RMB108.8 million).

The Group’s bank borrowings outstanding as at 31 December 2010
amounted to approximately RMB86.4 million (at 31 December 2009:
RMB10.5 million) were carried at floating interest rates. There was no
particular seasonality of the Group’s borrowings. The Group monitored
capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt of the Group divided by
total equity of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed
as a percentage of interest bearing loans and other borrowings over the
total equity of approximately RMB1,286.5 million (at 31 December
2009: RMB1,238.1 million) was approximately 6.7% as at 31 December
2010 (at 31 December 2009: 0.9%). Bank deposits pledged for banking
facilities as at 31 December 2010 was approximately RMB97.0 million
(at 31 December 2009: RMB90.9 million).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
2.8 times (at 31 December 2009: 4.0 times) based on current assets of
approximately RMB1,200.7 million (at 31 December 2009: RMB1,040.4
million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB434.6 million (at 31
December 2009: RMB258.5 million).

Trade receivable turnover days were approximately 78.7 days for the
year ended 31 December 2010 as compared to approximately 86.1
days for the year ended 31 December 2009. Inventory turnover days
were approximately 53.6 days for the year ended 31 December 2010 as
compared to approximately 59.4 days for the year ended 31 December
2009. Trade payable turnover days were approximately 79.9 days for
the year ended 31 December 2010 as compared to approximately 86.3
days for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2010 was approximately
RMB766.1 million, decreased by approximately 2.0% from the balance
of approximately RMB781.8 million recorded as at 31 December 2009.
Net assets as at 31 December 2010 was approximately RMB1,337.2
million, increased by approximately RMB97.0 million over the balance
as at 31 December 2009.
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Significant investments and acquisition

On 20 April 2010, Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital
injection agreement (“Capital Injection Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Ruide Electronic Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Ruide Electronics”), Hua Wei, Liu
Bai, Ji Fulin and Zhang Wei (together the “Vendors”) pursuant to which
Scud Electronics agreed to pay a total consideration of RMB50.0 million
whereby upon completion of the Capital Injection Agreement, Shenzhen
Hongde became an indirect subsidiary of the Company and Shenzhen
Hongde is ultimately owned by Scud Electronics as to 70%, Ruide
Electronics as to 6%, Hua Wei as to 13%, Liu Bai as to 5%, Ji Fulin as
to 3% and Zhang Wei as to 3%. Pursuant to the terms of the Capital
Injection Agreement, the total consideration payable by Scud Electronics is
RMB50.0 million. During the Review Period, RMB35.0 million was injected
into Shenzhen Hongde as contributions to its registered capital whilst the
remaining RMB15.0 million was recorded by Shenzhen Hongde as capital
surplus. Pursuant to the terms of the Capital Injection Agreement, it was
agreed that Shenzhen Hongde shall distribute dividends on an annual
basis which shall not be less than 30% of the relevant year’s profits
after tax. Further, it was agreed that the Vendors shall be entitled to
the undistributed profits of Shenzhen Hongde in the form of dividends
which amount to RMB6.0 million for the period up to 31 December 2009,
whilst the remaining undistributed profits shall be for the benefit of the
equity holders pro-rata of their equity interests in Shenzhen Hongde post
capital injection. Scud Electronics shall also be entitled to appoint over
70% of the board of directors of Shenzhen Hongde and shall have the
right to appoint the president and vice-president of Shenzhen Hongde.
The total consideration under the Capital Injection Agreement was arrived
at after arm’s length negotiations between the parties based on the net
asset value of Shenzhen Hongde as at 31 March 2010 of approximately
RMB29.7 million as stated in the unaudited management accounts of
Shenzhen Hongde. Further information about this transaction is set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 20 April 2010.

Save as disclosed above, the Group made no significant investment nor
had it made any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during
the Review Period.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2010, bank loans of approximately RMBO.1 million
(at 31 December 2009: RMBO.5 million) were secured by the Group’s
motor vehicles with a carrying amount of approximately RMB2.0 million
(at 31 December 2009: RMB2.3 million) and bank loans of approximately
RMB86.4 million (2009: RMB10.0 million) was an unsecured bank
loan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2010
amounting to approximately RMB72.6 million (at 31 December 2009:
RMB172.7 million) was mainly attributed to the setup of the upstream
bare battery cell production business in Fuzhou and acquisition of plant
and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has not provided any form of
guarantee for any Company outside the Group and has not involved
in any material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent
liabilities was required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share capital
of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2010, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group has not experienced any
material difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result
of fluctuations in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has
certain bank balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese
Yen and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group’s total assets
is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of exchange
risk is required and no financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes during 2010. Nevertheless, the management will continue to
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures
as and when it is appropriate.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 4,084 full-time employees
(2009: 3,314). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined by
the personal performance, professional qualification, industry experience
of the employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all
levels of employees are paid competitively within market standard and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the
framework of the Group’s salary, incentives and bonus scheme. The
management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group on a regular
basis and evaluates the working performance of the employees. The
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remuneration of the employees includes salaries, allowances, year-end
bonus and social insurance. According to the relevant prevailing laws and
regulations of the PRC, the Group has participated in the social insurance
plans set up by the related local government authorities, including
pension funds, medical insurance (including maternity insurance),
unemployment insurance and work-related injury insurance. The Group
has also participated in the mandatory provident fund scheme for its
Hong Kong employees in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 3 December 2006 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The Scheme was adopted for a period of
10 years and the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting
or the Board may at anytime terminate the Scheme without prejudice
to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and which remain
unexpired immediately prior to such termination. Since the adoption of
the Scheme and as at 31 December 2010, no share option has been
granted or exercised under such Scheme. Including the 7,788,000 share
options which expired during 2010, all share options granted under the
per-IPO share options scheme have expired. Further details of the share
option schemes are set out in pages 38 to 39 of this annual report.

Use of Proceeds

The Company raised proceeds of HK$604.0 million in aggregate as a result
of the initial public offering (“IPO") of the Company and net proceeds
of approximately HK$568.3 million were received after the deduction of
relevant IPO fees and commission incurred. Up to 31 December 2010,
the Group has utilized approximately RMB171.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$201.5 million) on the expansion of production capacity
and plant construction, approximately RMB123.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$144.6 million) on brand promotion and improvement
of Group's distribution network, approximately RMB123.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$145.6 million) on the acquisition of
the production equipment, inventory and intellectual property rights of
Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited and the 100% equity interest
in Chaolitong Technology Company Limited and approximately RMB53.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$62.5 million) on repayment of
bank borrowings. Remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB12.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$14.1 million) were mainly used
as daily working capital and held as deposits with banks in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

The State Council released the decree “Decision on speeding up the
cultivation and development of emerging strategic industries” on 18
October 2010, providing strong support for the seven priority industries
including energy-saving and environmental protection, next generation
information technology, bio-technology, high-end manufacturing, new
energy, new materials and clean-energy vehicles. Furthermore, policies
that provided strong support on “new energy” and “new materials”
industries as outlined in the PRC Government’s 12th Five-Year Plan would
also provide an advantageous environment for the sustained development
of the Lithium battery industries.

Looking ahead, next generation information technologies included
Internet of Things, Triple Play and e-commerce are expected to see rapid
growth. In accordance to the “2010 China e-commerce Market Study”
carried out by the China e-business Research Centre, a research group
made of e-commerce companies in China, e-commerce transactions
turnover exceeded RMB 4.5 trillion as at December 2010, with the
numbers of mobile e-commerce users expected to reach 250 million
people in 2012. These figures give rise to endless opportunities for the
development of e-commerce business. At the same time, as the mobile
phone market continued to flourish in China, the 3G market was also
seeing rapid growth; along with the fast maturing of the mobile internet
market, all these factors contribute to the positive outcome for our
Group’s future development plans, as well as market opportunities.

CONTINUOUS INVESTMENT IN EQUIPMENT TO
IMPROVE PRODUCT QUALITY

New technology is the fundamental driving force behind the
development of the battery industry. Hence, the Group planned
to invest heavily in the continuous improvement of our production
equipment, especially in the replacement of production equipment,
so that more existing machineries would be replaced by automated
equipment, which would in turn enhance our production technology
standards and improve production efficiency. The Group will continue
to adhere to our innovative business ideals by constantly seeking
technological advancement so as to provide consumers with quality
and innovative products.
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ENHANCE BRAND INFLUENCE THROUGH
PROACTIVE EXPLORATION OF MARKETS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to actively explore new
overseas markets for expansion. With our R&D, production and
marketing advantages, we would be able to launch the “SCUDFRERR"
brands overseas and thereby develop into an international brand. Also,
by leveraging on the rapid development of China’s e-commerce, the
Group would also inject capital to create a three-dimensional network
marketing model that combines the real world with the virtual world;
which would further build on the Group’s brand image by utilizing a
wide variety of media channels, and in turn improve the Group’s profit
margin and return on investment for Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNSREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fang Jin, aged 52, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Group, and is a senior economist. Mr. Fang is a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is also a co-founder of the Group which was founded in December
2006. Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s developmental
planning, operational and corporate investment decision-making and
brand strategy. Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for collective decision-
making for years and has set a very clear direction for SCUD product
management and brand construction. He commenced his career at the
age of 18, and has accumulated over twenty years of experience in the
mobile phone accessories industry and related operation management.
He has very keen discernment and vision on the exploration of brand
market and the marketability of new products. Prior to the establishment
of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co. Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”) in 1997, Mr.
Fang was engaged, as a sole proprietor, in the sale of communication
products and accessories in the PRC. In December 1996, he established
Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd. (“Cai Hong") in conjunction
with partners including Mr. Lin Chao (and established Scud Electronics
in October 1997). Mr. Fang has received several awards including:

2003 National Advanced Individual On Projects of End Users’
Satisfaction

2004 Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in
China

2004 Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector

2005 China Top Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs in Brand
Construction

2005 The Mudell's World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy

2006 Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy

2006 National Excellent Managers of Users’ Satisfaction

Mr. Fang is the Vice Chairman of the Joint Industrial and Commercial
Association of Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and Technological
Development Region, the Chairman of the First Committee of Fujian
Productivity Association, the First Honorary Chairman of the Fuzhou
Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen, a member of the 5th Standing
Committee of the Association of the Battery Industry in China and a
member of China Association for Quality Inspection.
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Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of Swift Joy Holdings
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2010, Mr. Fang was interested in 402,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 38.95% of the issued share capital of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO").

Guo Quan Zeng, aged 50, is an executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible for the
management of the Group’s daily operations. He joined the Group in
July 1997. He had been the managers of the research and development
department, sales department, planning department, production
department and quality control departments of Scud Electronics, and had
been director, vice general manager and vice president. He has abundant
experience in junior level management in OEM business development,
brand promotion, product research and development and quality control.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo was a lieutenant commander engineer
of the PRC navy mainly responsible for establishing and maintaining
wireless telecommunication systems. Mr. Guo has over 27 years of
experience in the research and development and quality management in
electronic products. Mr. Guo graduated from the Navy Senior Electronic
Engineering School with a bachelor’s degree in radio telecommunication
engineering in 1983.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings
Limited, which is a shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2010,
Mr. Guo was interested in 18,000,000 shares, representing approximately
1.74% of the issued share capital of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREER

Huang Yan, aged 31, is an executive Director and the general manager
of Scud Battery Co. Ltd. Ms. Huang is responsible for the main operation
of the Group’s own brand business division, brand culture construction,
brand market integration and development of sales distribution
channel. Ms. Huang accumulated years of experience in the business of
telecommunication products and is dedicated to technology innovation,
management and establishing and maintaining distribution channels
of the Group. Her contributions were essential in making the “SCUD"
brand to becoming one of the most valuable and most influential brands
in the PRC market, and driving the growth of the business under the
“SCUD" brand to achieve large scale productions, expanding product
types of the Group as well as eventually increasing the Group'’s presence
in the global market.

Ms. Huang graduated from Fujian Cadet Academy of Economic
Management in 1999 in the specialty of trading. She is currently a master
degree student at Xiamen University. She joined the Group in February
2001 and has served as the operation manager, vice-general manager
and the executive deputy vice-general manager of the Group’s own brand
business division. She has strong knowledge in the management of brand
business, production planning and team building. She was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 30 December 2009. As at
31 December 2010, Ms. Huang does not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Zhang Li, aged 50, is an executive Director and the general manager
of Scud Electronics, and is responsible for the entire operations of Scud
Electronics. The business of Scud Electronics is the production of OEM
products, including mobile phone batteries, chargers, notebook computer
batteries and motive batteries. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in October
2003 and had been the deputy general manager of Scud Electronics. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang had served as manager in the industrial
design department of Fujian Start Network, as manager of the research
and development department, of the accessories department and of the
sales department of Fujian Communications and Broadcasting Industrial
Company. He has nearly 30 years of experience in the telecommunication
industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Mechanical Engineering Faculty of
Jiangxi University in 1978. He was granted the qualification of practising
as an engineer in 1992 and was granted the qualification of practising
as a senior engineer in 1999. He was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 31 December 2010. As at 31 December 2010, Mr.
Zhang does not have any equity interest in the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Li Hui Qiu, aged 45, had been an executive Director during the Review
Period and resigned as a director of the Company on 31 December
2010. Mr. Li was mainly responsible for assisting the Chairman of the
Group in managing the Group’s internal management, information
system, external administrative affairs and investments. Mr. Li joined the
Group in January 2003 and had excellent achievement in the setting
up of the Group’s information system and the implementation of brand
strategy. Mr. Li was the director and executive deputy general manager
of Fujian Yutek Electronics Company Limited, a company held by Furi
Stock Company Limited, deputy head of the enterprise management
division of Liaoning Investment Group, director of Shenyang Jinjian
Short Fiber Composite Material Company Limited, a company held
by Liaoning Investment Group, director of Liaoning Jianye Technology
Development Co. Ltd. and production factory head of No.35 Factory of
Shenyang Aircraft Industry Group. Mr. Li has accumulated nearly 20 years
of experience in manufacturing industry management. Mr. Li graduated
from the Nanjing Aeronautic University in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree
in engineering. In 1998, he graduated from Beijing Aeronautic University
with a Master’s degree in engineering. As at 31 December 2010, Mr. Li
does not have any equity interest in the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 61, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and Chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company, respectively. Dr. Loke has over 35 years of experience
in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial
consultancy and corporate management. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Universitiy Teknologi Malaysia and a
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from the University of South
Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also an Associate
Member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is currently the
company secretary of Minth Group Limited and serves as an independent
non-executive director of Vodone Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, Bio-
Dynamic Group Limited, China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited,
Winfair Investment Company Limited, Zhong An Real Estate Limited and
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited, all being companies listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”).
During the last three years, Dr. Loke had been an independent non-
executive director of CNNC International Limited (formerly known as
United Metals Holdings Limited), Shandong Molong Petroleum Machinery
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Company Limited and ZMAY Holdings Limited, all being companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 May 2009. As at 31 December
2010, Dr. Loke does not have any equity interest in the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Wang Jing Zhong, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer and graduated from
East China University of Science & Technology with a Bachelor’s degree
in chemistry. He has nearly 14 years of experience in the management
of the battery industry. He had served as the engineer-in-charge of the
household products division in the Ministry of Light Industries, as deputy
department head of the campus department of the Education Bureau
and as the deputy officer-in-charge of the Household Products Office.
He is currently the executive vice-president and secretary general of
China Battery Industry Association. Mr. Wang joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2006. Mr. Wang
is currently an independent non-executive director of Tianneng Power
International Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. As at 31 December 2010, Mr. Wang does not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Wang Jian Zhang, aged 65, is an independent non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company and a senior engineer.
Mr. Wang graduated from Xian Military Institute of Telecommunication
Engineering. He has 24 years of experience in electronic technology and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang had served as deputy
director of the Promotion Division of Comprehensive Planning Department
under Ministry of Electronics Industry, director of the Comprehensive
Planning and the Investment Division under Ministry of Mechanical
and Electrical Industry, director-general of the Comprehensive Planning
Department under Ministry of Electronics, and director-general of the
Comprehensive Planning Department under the Ministry of Information
Industry. Mr. Wang joined the Company as an independent non-executive
Director on 3 December 2006. As at 31 December 2010, Mr. Wang
does not have any equity interest in the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pan Liang Chun, aged 37, is currently the general manager of Scud
Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”). He is responsible
for the entire operations of Scud Shenzhen. The main operation of Scud
Shenzhen was originally commercial premiums and OEM products and
has now been completely directed to the production of SCUD brand
products. Mr. Pan joined the Group in December 2001 and had served
as the director of the operation of the north-western, central and
Guangdong Regions of the Scud Electronics and the general manager
of the Own Brand Affairs Department. He had superior judgment and
wisdom in brand market development and planning. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Pan was the head of the manufacturing division of Fuging
Dayi Electronic Company Limited, general manager of Fuzhou Weitong
Leatherware Company Limited and general manager of Gansu Wanling
Telecom Equipment Company Limited. Mr. Pan has nearly 11 years of
experience in the sales of telecommunication products. Since he joined
the Group, he has been mainly responsible for the development of sales
distribution, brand construction and marketing management. Mr. Pan
graduated from Fujian Broadcasting University in 1997 with a Bachelor’s
degree in business administration.

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 34, is the Qualified Accountant
and Company Secretary of the Company. He is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group and is responsible for the overall financial and
accounting affairs. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung
worked as an auditor in an international accounting firm. He has more
than 11 years of experience in the accounting field. He has a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration and Accounting. Mr. Yeung joined
the Group in September 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETWRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of SCUD Group Limited (the
“Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) presents
its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for
the financial year from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010
("Review Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 63.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2010 to preserve cash for the working capital
requirement of the business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2010 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2010 in the share capital are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2010 comprised the accumulated profits, other
reserves and share premium of approximately RMB608.5 million
(2009: RMB598.5 million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Fang Jin (Chairman)
Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Huang Yan (re-appointed on 27 May 2010)
Zhang Li (appointed on 31 December 2010)
Li Hui Qiu (resigned on 31 December 2010)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

(re-appointed on 27 May 2010)
(re-appointed on 27 May 2010)
(re-appointed on 27 May 2010)

Loke Yu
Wang Jing Zhong
Wang lJian Zhang

According to the requirements of Article 86(3) of the articles of association
of the Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Zhang Li,
who was appointed on 31 December 2010 to fill the casual vacancy
which resulted from Mr. Li Hui Qiu’s resignation, will hold office until
the Company’s annual general meeting to be held in 2011. Mr. Zhang Li
shall be eligible and will offer himself for re-election in the forthcoming
annual general meeting in 2011.

According to the requirements of Article 87(1) of the articles of
association of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang will retire
at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held in 2011. Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang, all being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming annual general
meeting in 2011.
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On 31 December 2010, Mr. Li Hui Qiu resigned and Mr. Zhang Li was
appointed on the same day as an executive director of the Company. The
Company entered into a service contract with Mr. Zhang Li on the same
day for a term expiring on the date the annual general meeting to be
held by the Company in 2012 under which Mr. Zhang is not entitled to
any director’s fee for his services provided to the Company but the Board
may consider discretionary bonus payments based on performance.

There are no service contracts for any of the Directors who are nominated
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting in 2011 which
are not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the relevant interests or short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"), which are required to be
notified to the Company and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO)) or were required pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or were required, pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Number of
ordinary shares

Percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company

subject to (Note 3)

Number of options granted HAEAT

issued ordinary FriR i AR i 2ERITIRA

Name of Director Capacity shares held BR2Z ZBEZL

EEEB 14 ZEREAE ZERHA (PfF5E3)

Fang Jin Corporate interest (Note 1) 402,000,000 - 38.95%
Pk NEE (M)

Guo Quan Zeng Corporate interest (Note 2) 18,000,000 - 1.74%
BRI NERER (E2)

Note 1:  These shares are directly held by Swift Joy Holdings Limited, — Ffi&E1 : %Z%JiﬁfﬁEEL\RT Hxﬁﬁﬁ AIEERE

whose entire issued share capital is held by Fang Jin.

Note 2: These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings
Limited, whose entire issued share capital is held by Guo
Quan Zeng.

Note 3:  As per the provisions of the SFO, we have taken into account

the number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2010, i.e. 1,032,001,246 Shares, when calculating
this percentage.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives or
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 December 2010.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes, namely the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

38

The following table discloses movements of shares in the Company’s
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) during the period
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010.

Em&%%%ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%

(a)

Name Date of grant Exercise  Outstanding Granted

## RERM price at1.1.2010 during
168 RH-B-2% the year
()  -A-A RE
(1) HALTE R

Categoryl

D\rectors

%

Fang Jin 21.12.2006 2.02 2,000,000 -

Gu%ouan Zeng 21.12.2006 2.02 1,400,000 -

B oz}

Li Hui Qiu (Note 1) 21.12.2006 2.02 1,120,000 -

Zei (W)

Huang Yan 21.12.2006 2.02 80,000 -

Y

Zhang Li (Note 2) 21.12.2006 2.02 80,000 -

R (E2)

Total directors 4,630,000 -

ey

Category II

FHE

Senior management 21.12.2006 2.02 1,200,000 -

ERELE

Category II:

FoH:

Other staff 21.12.2006 2.02 1,908,000 -

ABET

Total of all categories 7,788,000 -

FrA Rt

Note 1 : Mr. Li Hui Qiu resigned as a Director on 31 December
2010.

Note 2:  Mr. Zhang Li was appointed as a Director on 31 December
2010.

Mr. Lin Chao resigned as a Director of the Company on 30 December
2009. Mr. Lin was interested in 1,600,000 shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Scheme as at 31 December 2009, representing approximately
0.16% of the issued capital. As at 31 December 2010, all options
granted to Mr. Lin under the Scheme have expired.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules and the
terms and conditions of the Scheme, all options are subject to the
following vesting period:

Period of exercise of the relevant percentage of option

TREBRENREE DL ZHR

From the expiry of the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the second anniversary of
the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B b RS —EFRE AR
ShmmBE c &KEABIE (BEERRAX)

From the expiry of the second anniversary of the
Listing Date to the last date of the third anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

b BB RmBFREE AR
Mz BFz&EASIE (BEEEMX)

From the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the fourth anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B M AR M= BFREE B
ShmBE KA (BEERRAX)

The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the Company and
was fixed at HK$2.02 per share.

As at 31 December 2010, all options granted under the Scheme have
expired.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No options have been granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2010 was the Company or any of
its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or convertible bonds (including bonds) of, the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

RAE AR RMEADE AR S - ARG 812 (65K 1
- BRI BT

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATEBREZESEOL

30% of the total number of Options granted
ERBBRERARZ30%

30% of the total number of Options granted
ERNBREREIZ30%

40% of the total number of Options granted
ERBBRELRZ40%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2010, the following persons (other than directors RZ-ZE—ZF+-_A=+—H U TFTAT(IIFEEAR
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in ~ FIEZSHEERTHAB)RARR 2 EBRPHEER
the ordinary shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the &% & EIE EHIEXVEF2 KR35 # 2 GESUAR AR
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the AREE @ AL ARRQRRIEESLBPEKLE
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the 336817 & Z it kA Z e slA R

Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the HFA&(XATESREEO.10EBTZZLER):
Company):

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Number of issued of the Company as at
ordinary shares/ 31 December 2010
underlying (Note 2)
shares held R=-Z—2F
e +ZRA=+—HEERAT
Name of shareholder Capacity BRITZER ERITRAEAL
RREA &1 HERG A (f3%2)
Swift Joy Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 402,000,000 38.95%
AR IERR B R A A EnEAA
Lin Chao Corporate interest (Note 1) 100,000,000 9.69%
MRitA Nz (M)
Beneficial owner 42,240,000 4.09%
BB A
Right Grand Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 100,000,000 9.69%
FEERERATR BEmEB A M)
Note 1:  These shares are directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited,  Fi#¥1 @ WERMDBERERBER AR EERA -
whose entire issued share capital is held by Lin Chao. Mz A AR 22 BITIRAENERFAE -
Note 2:  As per the provisions of the SFO, we have taken into account ~ [fzE2 :  RIEFHF LHE GO MK Rt E %
the number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 BOLE: Bt RBEZZT—ZTF+=
December 2010, i.e. 1,032,001,246 Shares, when calculating A=+—HEBTHAQRRMHER - 8
this percentage. 1,032,001,246 1D ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 50 to 60 of this annual report.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the total remunerations of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) and a remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review the
material investment, capital operation and material financial system of
the Company, to review the accounting policy, financial position and
financial reporting procedures of the Company, to communicate with
the external audit firm, to assess the performance of internal financial
and audit personnel, and to assess the internal control of the Company.
At present, the Audit Committee consists of three members who are Dr.
Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee are mainly to study and formulate the criteria of selection
and the remuneration policy of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company, to review candidates for the Directors and the senior
management of the Company, and to review the human resources
development and the utilisation policy of the Company. At present,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee each
consists of three members who are Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been
granted under the articles of association of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five customers and the largest customer of the Group represent
approximately 27.9% and approximately 9.7% of the Group’s total sales
of the year, respectively.

The top five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represent
approximately 32.8% and approximately 10.7% of the Group's total
purchases of the year, respectively. At no time during the year did a
Director, an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company) has equity interests in the top five
customers and suppliers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Company and the Group had connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which have been disclosed in compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected
with the Company are as follows:

Name
=L
Fang Jin
Wik

Guo Quan Zeng
SR

Lin Chao
it

Scud Electronics
REMREF

Scud Stock
FEBRAR (D

Scud Battery
REREM

Scud Shenzhen

RERFY

CLTE
BABET

&

CLTT
T ERHR

Fujian Netcom
R

SAQ TG BN AT HEERELHE
T -

Relationship
RS
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company

EERARAEREER

Director

%

Substantial shareholder of the Company

RAFEERR

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly
held by the Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director

RER () EFARAR AertERLRESTHAQRME
2EME AR

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo
Quan Zeng, being common directors who has shareholding interest
in this company as to 67% and 3%, respectively. Mr. Lin Chao
has 25% shareholding interest in Scud Stock

BEREBRROERAT e RBRIGEEAKLEESTNAT
DRIERZ AR RI67 % B3% A - MBS LR RERBA25%
i

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held
by the Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director

REMEMBBRATF - TR EERFREFNARFREEZENB AR

Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
indirectly held by the Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common
director

REBRET ORI BRAR FertEAEREENARABE
EWBAT

Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited, Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng
Wei are directors and shareholders of both CLTE and CLTT

HIBEFTERAR - BARLTENRBEEERBENBEFLE B
BHEE IR

Chaolitong Technology Company Limited, a 70% owned subsidiary
indirectly held by the Company with Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng
Wei being directors of both CLTE and CLTT

RITEHBRRBRAT - EAREEREELERBNRETF LB
HBEREHAREENARREREERE70%H M E R T

Fujian Netcom Technology Co., Ltd., a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Fang Dong, the brother of Mr. Fang Jin

BRAABMBRERAR  FRAEZEHRANAR  MESFTE
TERES
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Connected Transaction

On 14 May 2010, 21 June 2010 and 15 July 2010, Scud Shenzhen, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into three sale and
purchase agreements (together "Sale and Purchase Agreements")
respectively, with Fujian Netcom, a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Fang Dong, the brother of Mr. Fang lJin, our Director and
controlling shareholder. Fujian Netcom is therefore an associated
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of Mr. Fang Jin. Pursuant to the
Sale and Purchase Agreements, Scud Shenzhen agreed to sell and
Fujian Netcom agreed to purchase various types of batteries for a
total consideration of RMB4,999,225 (inclusive of the PRC value
added tax) payable after receipt of the batteries. Further details of
the Sale and Purchase Agreements are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 14 March 2011.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(i) Lease agreement with Scud Stock and Scud Battery

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 11 December
2006, on 20 June 2004, the Company entered into a land lease
agreement (the “Main Lease Agreement”) with Scud Stock
for the purpose of leasing a factory premises for production
use until 30 June 2007. The Main Lease Agreement was
subsequently extended to 30 June 2024.

Scud Electronics and Scud Stock entered into a separate lease
agreement (the “New Lease Agreement”) dated 15 November
2007 for the lease of office premises for administrative use
for the Group for a term of 3 years and later entered into a
lease renewal agreement (the “Renewal Agreement”) dated
8 January 2010 terminating the New Lease Agreement with
effect from 1 January 2010. The Renewal Agreement is
effective commencing from 1 January 2010 and its tenure
ending on 31 December 2012. The annual rental under the
Renewal Agreement was RMB1,378,368 payable in cash on a
monthly basis. The annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2010 was RMB4,100,000 including the rental under the Main
Lease Agreement.
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On 1 January 2011, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock agreed
to terminate the Main Lease Agreement and the Renewal
Agreement with effect from 1 January 2011 and entered
into a lease agreement (the “First Lease Agreement”) for the
period commencing from 1 January 2011 and ending on 31
December 2013. The annual rental was RMB5,461,866 and
payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2011, Scud Battery and Scud Stock entered into
a lease agreement (the “Second Lease Agreement”) for the
period commencing from 1 January 2011 and ending on 31
December 2013. The annual rental was RMB6,729,777 and
payable by cash on a monthly basis.

The premises in Fuzhou under the First Lease Agreement and
the Second Lease Agreement were leased for use as a factory,
office for administration use for the Group and staff dormitory
for the employees of the Group. Further details of the First
Lease Agreement and the Second Lease Agreement are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2011.
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(ii) CLT Lease Agreement

On 17 January 2008, CLTE and CLTT entered into a lease
agreement (“CLT Lease Agreement”) whereby CLTT will lease
the factory and dormitory premises from CLTE in Shenzhen.
The Vendor is a connected person of the Company by way of
its 30% interest in the Purchaser. As of 2 June 2008 whereby
the Company received all relevant approvals required from
Chinese regulators in relation to the CLT Lease Agreement,
CLTT became an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and the CLT Lease Agreement therefore constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the Company since
the shareholders of CLTE are connected persons pursuant to
Rule14A.11(4) (a) of the Listing Rules. The lease was for an
initial period of 3 years from 17 January 2008 to 16 January
2011, with an agreed annual rental of RMB3,600,000. Rental
is payable in cash on a monthly basis. Further details of the CLT
Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 January 2008.

The CLT Lease Agreement has been renewed on 4 January
2011 based on the same terms. Based on the annual rental
pursuant to the renewed agreement, as the highest of the
relevant percentage ratios as defined under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules (other than the profits ratio) in respect of the
annual caps of such transactions is, on an annual basis, less
than 1%, such transaction constitute deminimis transactions
for the Company under Rule 14A.33(3)(b) of the Listing Rules
and are therefore exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules following
amendments to the Listing Rules effective 3 June 2010.
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The details on annual caps and actual amount incurred for the above
continuing connected transactions for 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

CLT Lease Agreement FE B E
Main Lease Agreement FE2HEWZ
Renewal Agreement B R

First Lease Agreement E—MHHEEWRE

Second Lease Agreement £ B E W

Note: As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3 January
2011, the annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under all
Leases (as defined in the announcement) is RMB12,191,643
for each of the 3 years ending 31 December 2013, being the
sum of the annual caps under the First Lease Agreement and
the Second Lease Agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions set
out herein and in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, and
have confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December 2010, such

transactions were entered into:
(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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for the year ended  for the year ending
31 December 2010 31 December 2011
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The independent auditors of the Company have also confirmed that the

continuing connected transactions:—
(1) have been approved by the Board of the Company;

(2) were entered into at amounts consistent with the pricing policies
of the Company;

(3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcements.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the transactions referred in the section “Connected Transactions”
above, no Directors has direct or indirect material interests in any material
contracts or contracts of significance entered into by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries at any time during the year ended 31 December
2010.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed interest in any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

The annual report for the year containing all the relevant information
as required by Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules will be despatched to
shareholders of the Company and published on the website of the Stock
Exchange in due course.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers
such directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In respect of the Tohoku earthquake and tsunami that occurred in Japan
on 11 March 2011, we are still making enquiries of our suppliers as to
if and to what extent supply of products to the Group will be affected.
Until we obtain specific information in this regard, we will continue to
monitor and evaluate the situation and if our supplies are adversely
affected or the costs of our components increase materially, we will
make such announcements as are appropriate in accordance to the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant subsequent event occurred
after 31 December 2010.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Moore Stephens retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By the order of the Board

)

FANG JIN
Chairman

24 March 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries,
(the “Group”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and improves
the Group’s corporate governance and internal controls practices. Set
out below are the principles of corporate governance as adopted by the
Company during the financial year from 1 January 2010 to 31 December
2010 (the “Review Period”).

DISTINCT ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin served as the Chairman of the
board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company and was
responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring the
implementation of strategies and plans to create values for shareholders.
Mr. Guo Quan Zeng served as the President of the Group and was
responsible for managing the overall business operations of the Group,
proposing strategies to the Board and the effective implementation of
the strategies and policies adopted by the Board, effectively carrying
out the role of a CEO.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions in the Company, there are no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between the
Chairman and the CEO.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2010, there were seven members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, three other executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"), the names of which are
shown in the table on page 55.

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board considered
that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board
and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the Group

nor has any relationship with other directors. Each of the INEDs confirmed
their respective independence to the Group.
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Save for the Directors’ business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships in the Company, there are no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships among members of the Board
and they are independent from each other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’ value. Daily
operational decisions are delegated to the Executive Directors and the
senior management. The Board met 9 times in 2010 and the Directors’
attendance is shown in the table on page 55. The Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group during the Review Period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code and
recommended best practices under the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code on Corporate Governance”) set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) and adopted
with reference to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
2002. At present, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who
are Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Loke Yu. Each committee
member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
has held 2 meetings during the year 2010 and the relevant Director’s
attendance is shown on page 55.

BRREFEEEEARANESBEMANELHE
S EEERBZMEWER T - X5 RiksHM
BER/HEEBERE URBRBIAL -

ﬁ‘il%‘;‘é%imﬁf‘@@ﬁﬂ?ﬁhziﬁiﬁﬁﬁTth Tg
cEEZEMIRYREABIF R ARERER
HR?"E& AR BB E A B RIAR TR B
B HEEEREDRTATEERGRELE -
BEXgRN T -ZTFEHRTTIRGH  MEFNHRE
SR ESSEMEAN - EE SR EEME AL
2 9 D B = MO AR R E AR

BEREES

ARBCRBREEMERXSMER AR (BFT])
EH EMMAT EMRADMEARMBERERT
M A(TREERTAD THEZBRRERATAIR
BAGMAEN_TT _F_ANENIEREZE
Aﬁxﬁl@{’ﬂa Sl IEREZER((EXREEE))

WAEHRETHBE - Bl EXZESKEBRR
ZRBYIFNTES DR AEEEMNEL  THA
EERTREELE -BRZESHNEFE AEESKE

T-BUZBEENERNERZESEMEHERY
BRRLRFGANEEERZEGH M BEENEEN

KB - HEOR G EXENAAEEEENERLK
B BRZEER-_ZETANF+A=ZHKY ' I
RZZE—TFRNBIM2AEE - FHESNHFEBR
EHNEE558 -

SEBRAR 51



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval,

to make recommendations to the Board on, the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function; and

to review the terms and conditions of connected transactions of
the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee has carried out the

following:

(a)

52

Financial Statements

The Audit Committee met with the Chief Financial Officer and other
senior management of the Group to review the interim report and
annual report of the Group prior to recommending the financial
statements to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee has
considered and discussed the reports with the management, the
Group’s internal department and external auditors, with a view
of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial statements
were prepared in accordance with the International Accounting
Standards and also reviewed the terms and conditions of connected
transactions of the Group.
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(b) External Auditors

(c)

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of Moore
Stephens Certified Public Accountants (“Moore Stephens”), as the
Group’s external auditors.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal control. It conducted
a review of the process by which the Group evaluated its control
environment and risk assessment process, and the way in which
business and control risks were managed. The Audit Committee
also discussed with the internal audit department of the Group the
work plan for their audits on the Group together with their resource
requirements to ensure the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group’s business operations.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration

Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and has held 1 meeting during the

year 2010 where all Remuneration Committee members attended the

meeting to discuss remuneration related matters as shown in page 55.

At present, the Remuneration Committee comprises Dr. Loke Yu, Mr.

Fang Jin and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee is Dr. Loke Yu. Its main duties are summarised as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
as well as a formal and transparent procedure for developing such
remuneration policies;

to determine the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors, senior management and Non-executive Directors; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the year include
the following:

(i) determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive
Directors;

(i) assessing performance of Executive Directors; and
(iii) approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts.

In order to attract, retain, and motivate executives and key employees
serving the Group, the Company has adopted a share option scheme in
December 2006. Such incentive schemes enable the eligible persons to
obtain an ownership interest in the Company and thus to reward the
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments and details of the 2010
share option scheme are set out in notes 8 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and has held 1 meeting during the
year 2010 where all Remuneration Committee members attended the
meeting as shown on page 55. At present, the Nomination Committee
comprises Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Dr. Loke Yu. The Nomination
Committee selects and recommends appropriate candidates based on
the candidates’ prior experience and qualifications to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and the senior management of the Group. The
main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
change;

(i)  to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;
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(iii)

to determine their eligibility; and

(iv)

to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors

to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance

guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed

changes to the Board for approval.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period

include determining the policy for the nomination of Directors.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual Director

and committee member in the respective Board, committee and general

meetings held during the Review Period.

Number of meetings held during
the Review Period

Executive Directors:

Fang Jin

Guo Quan Zeng

Huang Yan

Zhang Li (appointed on 31 December 2010)
Li Hui Qiu (resigned on 31 December 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Loke Yu

Wang ling Zhong

Wang lian Zhang
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LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regularly basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance introduced by The Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENCE INFORMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation
of his independence, and the Company considers such directors to be
independent in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2010.

To achieve high corporate governance standards and enhance corporate
performance and accountability, the Company has established an internal
audit department to ensure the Group maintains a sound and effective
system of internal controls. The internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss; to
manage the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the
Group's objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it also
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code”). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2010.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditors, including whether such
non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on
the Company. During the Review Period, the Group was required to pay
approximately RMB1.09 million to Moore Stephens and approximately
RMBO0.34 million to the PRC auditors for their audit services. The Group
was also required to pay approximately RMB0.22 million to Moore
Stephens for their non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the responsibilities
of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on pages 61 to
62 of this annual report.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Company but also seeking to maximise the interest and return for all
parties so as to enhance a harmonious development and a victorious
collaboration in the long run.

1. INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication and
interaction with investors, and continued to improve communication
channels with shareholders and investors, so as to enhance
governance transparency. The Group’s management will regularly
come to Hong Kong to meet investors, and proactively announce
the latest information and business development plans. During the
Review Period, we have held individual investors’ meetings and
telephone conferences with various institutional investors and fund
managers. Furthermore, the Group has been in strict compliance
with listing requirements; to provide market participants and
regulators with timely, accurate, complete and reliable information
of the Company, so that investors may make the best decision.
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2. CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

58

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety issues of products,
especially on mobile phone batteries and have implemented strict
quality control like ISO so as to meet safety requirements. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests including
crash, high-temperature, dampen and long-period recharging on
our battery products. We also invest resources in product R&D to
develop more reliable products. The battery products of the Group
have also passed the stringent requirements on quality control and
safety set by relevant government authorities.

EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
the free flow of fire passages and the adequacy of water for fire
prevention. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire exercises,
increased investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so
as to ensure the sufficiency of fire prevention equipments and
facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), fix problems in a timely manner, so as to ensure
the free flow of fire passages and the adequacy of water for
fire prevention;

(i) hold regular (additional if necessary) safety seminar and training
for employees, especially for new staff, striving to enhance
employees’ hazard prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire exercises every year, set
May 31 the fire exercise day of the Company and conduct
general safety checks and fire exercises on such days;
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(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops, with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner;

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact in such flammables;

(vi) increase investments in fire prevention facilities in new
factories, with reasonably established fire prevention districts
and ensure the sufficiency of facilities.

ESTABLISH OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed emphasis
to on-job training for its staff. The Group kicked off a comprehensive
talent training programme, which is tied to the establishment of
its own skill training institute. Talents will be cultivated at the
skill institute and available in the pipeline to resolve the labour
shortage issue faced by the industry participants. After a period of
training, the Group will convey labour resources directly to various
departments, which will shorten the time of staff replacement and
reduce labour cost. Automated production will also be implemented
at different phases. Moreover, in the training process, students can
comprehend the practical operation issues arising from the course
of production, which will effectively enhance production efficiencies
and qualities. The Group will enlist talents from the society at large
and select the management and technical experts that it needs
through professional and rigorous training processes. At the same
time, this will also bring to the society a new generation of talents
and allow the Company to fulfil its social responsibilities and deliver
contributions to the society.

PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group has been promoting and exercising a fair and non-
discriminative employment policy. Employees are employed on
contract basis and employment contracts were signed based on
a fair and voluntary principle, with requirements with regard to
contract term, scope of work, work remuneration, social insurance,
and working hour, among others. The rights and obligations
of the employer and employee are defined clearly by legal
representation.
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We also strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to national social insurance to set up insurance scheme for
basic aged caring, medical, injuries at work, unemployment and
birth-giving for employees and cover the various insurance expenses.
Meanwhile, to further protect the interests of individual employees,
the Company registered a commercial accident insurance scheme
for all employees. The Group implemented the Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China since 1 January 2008 and
established a labor union. We hold an employees’ meeting every
two weeks, in support of construction and development of a
harmonious and stable employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always emphasised in
supporting environmental protection and a environmental friendly
enterprise. We strictly control the production procedures and reduce
waste generation. Despite small amount of waste generated during
the packaging process, it is sorted by the Group and the recyclable
portions are delivered to qualified recycling plants for treatment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 163, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2
30 Canton Road

Tsimshatsui »
Kowloon )jﬁ
Hong Kong ==
z
Tel : (852) 2375 3180 o

Fax : (852) 2375 3828 .
E-mail : ms@ms.com.hk s
www.ms.com.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

e

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
24 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

melmE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z =% —

FETA=+—HIFE

2010 2009

—E-=F —ETNEF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

MIsE ARETT AREETTT

Turnover =E 2] 4 1,527,445 1,264,869

Cost of sales SHERA (1,266,634) (1,035,755)

Gross profit EF 260,811 229,114

Other revenue H bl 5 11,142 6,731

Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko SR (76,040) (77,571)

Administrative expenses 1T (124,102) (100,016)

Other operating expenses Efth a2 F 2 (1,559) (1,954)

Profit from operations Fed =gl 6 70,252 56,304

Finance costs & A AR 9 (2,052) (1,390)

Profit before taxation B BT A 68,200 54,914

Taxation TiIa 10 (16,038) (8,996)

Profit for the year A EEEF 52,162 45,918
Attributable to: TH AL :

Equity holders of the Company RARIERFFEA 54,350 46,837

Non-controlling interests SIS (2,188) (919)

52,162 45,918

Dividends BRE 11 - 18,173

Earnings per share SREF
— basic (RMB cents) —ERARES 12 5.27 4.55
— diluted (RMB cents) —#BARED 12 5.22 4.51




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-ZT—F#+_-H=+—HIFFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Profit for the year RFE T 52,162 45,918
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEBA
the year
Exchange differences arising TSN A B 2 B IS R
on translation of the financial EITHERELE ZER 58
statements of foreign subsidiaries (749) (314)
Total comprehensive income for AEEZHEWRALE
the year 51,413 45,604
Total comprehensive income THALTEEEEBALLE :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RARIERFFEA 51,917 46,504
Non-controlling interests FEFE MR A (504) (900)
51,413 45,604
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE BRI 3R

At 31 December 2010 R=—F—TF+—-f=+—H

(Restated) (Restated)
(&351) (&51)
2010 2009 2008
—E-ZF —EThEF ZETNF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARETR ARET T ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1%¥ « BE K&K 13 370,936 270,133 288,429
Intangible assets B EE 14 151,395 187,577 224,983
Deferred tax assets B BEE 15 304 572 1,675
Prepayments, deposits and TBRIE « 7E REA
other receivables FEUFRIR 19 48,403 = =
571,038 458,282 515,087
Current assets REBEE
Due from related parties FEU A BB A T8 16 5,888 2,335 938
Inventories FE 17 212,943 159,117 178,025
Trade and notes receivables JEWE 5 I Kk B R 1 18 380,509 278,238 318,781
Prepayments, deposits and other FEffFXIE « & M
receivables H At PRI IE 19 186,812 111,726 61,466
Current tax recoverable AT U B BN HEAFR 1B 330 7,146 6,450
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITIER 20 96,976 90,911 105,942
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 21 317,234 390,884 351,176
1,200,692 1,040,357 1,022,778
Current liabilities REARE
Due to related parties FERN B BEEATFUA 22 4,128 = 3,877
Trade and notes payables FE B 5 50H R ER R 23 325,637 198,777 257,642
Provision for warranty ERREEHES 24 3,898 4,166 3,683
Other payables, receipts in HthfEAFRIE « FEUGRIE
advance and accrued charges Mgt E R 25 61,309 43,959 44,184
Current tax payable e BN 18 1,644 1,187 =
Bank loans — current portion RITER—REHH 26 37,961 10,444 7,279
434,577 258,533 316,665
Net current assets REEEFE 766,115 781,824 706,113
Total assets less current liabilities #R&EERAEEE 1,337,153 1,240,106 1,221,200
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R 3R

At 31 December 2010 R=—F—T4F+—-A=+—A

(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E31)
2010 2009 2008
—E-FF —ETHhF —ETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt ARETR AREFTT ARET T
Capital and reserves BEARHE
Share capital %N 27 103,014 103,014 102,134
Reserves fFE 1,076,632 1,053,180 1,035,710
Equity attributable to equity ZAAFEREIZEA
holders of the Company EiEERE 1,179,646 1,156,194 1,137,844
Non-controlling interests JEfR RS 106,867 81,938 82,838
Total equity R 1,286,513 1,238,132 1,220,682
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans — non-current RITER—FEREBBH
portion 26 48,470 74 518
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAG 15 2,170 1,900 =
50,640 1,974 518
Total equity and non-current #AEZRFFEREBER
liabilities 1,337,153 1,240,106 1,221,200

FANG JIN

&

Director

EZE
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GUO QUAN ZENG
BRR1T
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmPER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—F—FF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable
to equity
Shares Statutory Enterprise Share holders Non-
Share  tobe  Share  Capital reserve expansion Translation  option Acumulated  of the controlling
capital  issued premium  reserve  fund  fund reserve reserve  profits Company interests  Total
A0 TkR
51 I EhE BEA FEAE
k& &GRG RHEE HARE  OEE 3REE ENRRE 0 BRE EEA BERH 0 BE AR
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTL ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2009 R-EEnE-B-H 102,134 32332 567,604 186,215 61,009 30494 (34185 6341 185900 1,137,844 82,838 1,220,682
Total comprehensive income/(los) KERRARENA/(HE)

for the year 48 - - (900) 45,604
Shares issued on acquisition of YR ARETNRE

Chaolitong - - - -
Subsequent adjustment on YR AN AR B

contingent consideration HfE

on acquisition of Chaolitong - - - (11.4149)
Share options lapsed in 2009 NEEENFRINERE = (2931) = =
Recognition of equity-settled AREEENNRN

share-based payments X3 - - - - - - - 145 - 145 - 145
Appropriations i - - - - 1337 6564 - - (19991) - - -
Dividends paid BfiRE - - - - - - - - (18,195) (18,195 - (18,199)
At 31 December 2009 R-BBAET-A=t- E 103014 10459 577,115 186215 74336 37158  (34450) 4859 197488 1,156,194 81,938 123813
Total comprehensive incomel{oss) KERRAREN /(5B

for the year g - - - - - - 24 - 54350 51917 (504) 51413
Subsequent adjustment on Y AN AR ER

contingent consideration on L

acquisition of Chaolitong - (10,459) - - - - - - - (10459) - (10459
Share options lapsed in 2010 REE-SEEMNERE - - - - - - - (4859 4859 - - -
Non-controllng interest arising A -EHER AR

from acqistion of a subsidiary R RS - - - - - - - - - - BNS B%S
Appropriations AR - - - - 10349 603 - - (16372) - - -
Diidends paid Efffe - - - - - - - - (8006 (18006) - (18006)
Capitel contributions to subsidiaries ~ FFARERRIBARLE

by non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 2188 2,168
At 31 December 2010 R-F-E5+ZA=1-H 103,014 - STIM5 186215 84685 43,181  (36,883) - 319 1179646 106,867 1,286,513




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-ZT—F#+_-H=+—HIFFE

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and the
Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company, these
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, namely
a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund which are
non-distributable. Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”),
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”), Chaolitong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chaolitong
Technology”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Hongde”),
Scud (Guangzhou) Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (“Scud Guangzhou”),
Scud (Beijing) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Beijing”) and Fujian Chaolitong
Battery Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Chaolitong”) are required to transfer 10% of
their respective profit after taxation as reported in the PRC statutory
financial statements to the statutory reserve fund until the balance
reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Scud Electronics, Scud
Battery, Scud Shenzhen, Chaolitong Technology, Shenzhen Hongde,
Scud Guangzhou, Scud Beijing and Fujian Chaolitong (together the “PRC
Subsidiaries”), they are also required to make appropriation from their
respective profit after taxation as reported in the PRC statutory financial
statements to the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined by
their respective boards of directors. The statutory reserve fund may be
used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with the approval from
the relevant government authorities, to increase capital for expansion
of production of the PRC Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund,
subject to the approval by the relevant government authorities, may also
be used to increase capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

w/T\ EE?E/}ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z =% —

FETA=+—HIFE

(Restated)
E27)
2010 2009
—E-Ef ZTENE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHIBRESTE
Profit before taxation BREH A A 68,200 54,914
Adjustments for: FEEA
Interest income FEWA (3,266) (4,724)
Finance costs BB A 2,052 1,390
Impairment loss recognised on: o5 FER AR E S
- Goodwill -HE - 6,200
- Intangible assets — B EE 18,217 10,394
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESH 10,377 10,378
Depreciation and amortisation: FEREH:
— Property, plant and equipment — % - BE K& 42,389 38,118
~ Sales counter decoration —EREEEB 35,521 47,462
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BE R
plant and equipment EEER 918 1,845
Equity-settled share-based payments T iE B 2 AR X 5018 - 1,455
Impairment loss recognised on trade ERNE S HER RS -
and notes receivables, prepayments, BRRE - Ze REMEKZE
deposits and other receivables TERHREEE 1,602 59
Reversal of impairment loss recognised EREESRERERER
on trade and notes receivables, BRFRE - Ze REMEKZE
prepayments, deposits and TERH R EE R
other receivables (991) (594)
Negative goodwill recognised as income RRBANE SR (4,286) =
(Release of) provision for warranty (BE)ERREEHRES (268) 483
Operating profit before changes
in working capital g é/ﬁﬁﬂ 170,465 167,380
Increase in amount due from e B A T F IR
a related party (3,553) (1,397)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEEM),/ SR (543) 18,908
(Increase)/decrease in trade and BWE FHIER R EE
notes receivables (#h0),/md (82,135) 40,624
Increase in prepayments, deposits BAFE « Ze REMEKIEEM
and other receivables (121,259) (49,806)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and notes payables JEfE Z 78 K EMNZHEE M,/ Cid) 81,340 (58,865)
Decrease in other payables, HIEAEE « BRRER
receipts in advance and accrued charges FEsrE AR (172) (1,180)
Cash generated from operations RELEEBNRS 44,143 115,664
Interest paid BRFE (2,979) (1,390)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB CERER (7,332) (5,501)
Net cash generated from REREEHNRLFHE
operating activities 33,832 108,773
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ EE i }Jltb% %

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—F—FF+-H=+—HILFE

(Restated)
(&5)
2010 2009
“E-ZF “TENE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
{oE ARETR ARETT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNRLRE
Interest received BIFIE 3,266 4,724
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BEMRITER
bank deposits (), B (6,065) 15,031
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WEE—FENEAR © IKEAES 28 2,725
Payments for sales counter decoration BREEAEERE (7,020) (36,031)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYWE BEK
equipment R (155,166) (33,146)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BABVEERER (3,745) (25)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BERRE
plant and equipment RIFT1S IR 1,568 48
Net cash used in investing activities ARBRETBNERLFE (164,437) (49,399)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEZHNRERE
Dividends paid BTRRE (18,006) (18,195)
Bank loans raised SERTER 117,357 37,000
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (47,944) (34,279)
Advance/(repayment to) from related parties B BEA LB (BHR) 4,128 (3,877)
Capital contributions to subsidiaries FERERANBARLE
by non-controlling interests 2,168 -
Net cash used in financing activities ARREEHNREFR 57,703 (19,351)
(Decrease)/increase in cash ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁlﬁﬁ
and cash equivalents m) /& (72,902) 40,023
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRekBELEEER
beginning of year 390,884 351,176
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZREEHNTE (748) (315)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREERAEEEER 317,234 390,884
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents REeRBAELEEEEB O
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 21 317,234 390,884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE T —F#+ - =+—HIFFZE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 21
December 2006.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
rechargeable battery packs and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebook computers, digital cameras and also engaged
in manufacture and sale of lithium bare battery cells for mobile
phones.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010 (the “Financial Statements”) have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The principal accounting policies and
methods of computation used in the preparation of the Financial
Statements are consistent with those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009, except
for the adoption of the new and revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as explained in note 3 below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—F—F#+-A=+—HILFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

72

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (the “IFRIC") of the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Adoption of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year except as follows:

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
and IFRIC interpretations for the Financial Statements which
are effective for accounting periods commencing on or after
1 January 2010. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to the
new and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,
the adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has
had no effect on these financial statements.
IFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters
Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled

IFRS 2 Amendments

Share-based Payment Transactions

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b) Adoption of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IAS 39 Amendment Amendment to IAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement —
Eligible Hedged Items

IFRIC-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners
Amendments to Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current
IFRS 5 included Assets Held for Sale and
in Improvements to Discontinued Operations —
IFRSs issued in Plan to Sell the Controlling
October 2008 Interest in a Subsidiary
Improvements to Improvements to IFRS issued in 2009
IFRSs 2009

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of IFRS
3 (Revised) and IAS 17 (Amendments), the adoption of these new
and revised International Financial Reporting Standards has had no
material effect impact on the accounting policies of the Group and
the methods of computation in the Group’s financial statements in
the current period or prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #{ZE —Z—ZTH&+_-H=+—HILF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

74

IFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business Combinations’ and
consequential amendments to IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements’, IAS 28 ‘Investments in
Associates’, and IAS 31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures' are
effective prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July

2009.

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations but with some
significant changes compared with IFRS 3. For example,
all payments to purchase a business are recorded at fair
value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the
income statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets. All acquisition-related costs are expensed.

As the Group has adopted IFRS 3 (Revised), it is
required to adopt IAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements’ at the same time. IAS
27 (Revised) requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there
is no change in control and these transactions will no
longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured at fair
value, and a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
There has been no impact of IAS 27 (Revised) on the
current period, as none of the non-controlling interests
have a deficit balance. There have been no transactions
whereby an interest in an entity is retained after the loss
of control of that entity; there have been no transactions
with non-controlling interests.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IAS 17 (Amendment) ‘Leases’ is effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010. The amendment
removes the specific guidance on the classification
of long-term leases of land as operating lease. When
classifying land leases, the general principles applicable
to the classification of leases should be applied. The
classification of land leases has to be reassessed on
adoption of the amendment on the basis of information
existing at inception of the leases. The Group has applied
IAS 17 (Amendment) from 1 January 2010. The Group'’s
management has reassessed the existing land leases
classification by referring to the general principles set out
in the standard, and concluded that such arrangement
has substantially transferred all risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased land to the Group
notwithstanding that at the end of the lease term, title
will not be passed to the Group. As a result, prepaid lease
payment of the Group has been reclassified to property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of prepaid
lease payment has been reclassified to depreciation
retrospectively. Such reclassification had no effect on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

As a result of the adoption of this amendment by the
Group which has resulted in the retrospective application
of an accounting policy and reclassification of certain
items in the consolidated financial statements, in
accordance with IAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial
Statements”, the Group has presented an additional
consolidated statement of financial position that reflect
the financial position of the Group at the beginning of

the earliest comparative period being presented.

The following tables disclose the adjustments that have
been made in accordance with the amendment to each of
the line items in the consolidated statements of financial
position as previously reported as at 31 December 2008
and 31 December 2009 and in the consolidated income
statement as previously reported for the year ended 31
December 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZ—ZF—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b) Adoption of new and

International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Effect on statements of financial position as at 31
December 2008 and 31 December 2009

FESHBEX®

b) BRANFHTR] RS ET B PR B 35 3R 5 2 A

HWo_BENFF+—A=1+—HR=ZFZEN
FE+ZF=1+—HHBNRERZZE

Effect of new policy

(increase/(decrease)

in net assets)

FERz&
(BEEFEEM GED))
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
—ZETAEF —ETNF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREEFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment S EN YN 11,985 12,243
Prepaid lease payment Bt E IR
— non-current portion —IEmE D (11,727) (11,985)
258 258
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payment B ERIE
— current portion —mEIE D (258) (258)
Net current assets RBEEFRE (258) (258)
Net assets EEFE - =
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

Adoption of new and revised

International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Effect on consolidated income statement for the year

ended 31 December 2009

3. FEEFHERE)

b)  ERARHET AR T E MR B A 48 5 2
(&)
HAE-FFAF+=A=1—ALFE
GRUEE L

Effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease)
in profit for the period)

FBEZE
(HAmsaAI R~ CRi2))
RMB’000
ARETFT
Expenses 53

— Depreciation — e (258)

— Amortisation of prepaid — TR ERIEE
lease payment 258
Profit for the year NS 5 A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #{ZE —Z—ZTH&+_-H=+—HILF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

78

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the directors to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies
and estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities are as follows:

i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, and will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation charges in future periods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i)

iif)

iv)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to any industry downturn. The
directors reassess the estimations at the end of each
reporting period.

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of the customers and other debtors and the
current market condition. The directors reassess the
allowance at the end of the reporting period.

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information
may differ from future claims. Factors that could impact
the estimated claim information include the success of
the Group’s productivity and quality initiatives, as well
as parts and labour costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

80

v)

Vi)

vii)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the value in use. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
In June 2008, the Company acquired the sale interest
of Chaolitong Technology Company Limited and the
sale assets of Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited,
and the carrying amount of goodwill at the end of
the reporting period was Nil. Details of the impairment
testing are provided in note 14.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions
with employees by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.
Estimating fair value for share-based payments requires
determining the most appropriate valuation model for
a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on
the terms and conditions of the grant. This also requires
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life of the option, volatility
and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.
The assumptions and models used for estimating fair
value for share-based payments are disclosed in note
29.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant judgment is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

vii) Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB36,760,000 (2009: RMB38,319,000).
These losses relate to subsidiaries that have a history of
losses and may not be used to offset taxable income
elsewhere in the Group. These subsidiaries have no
temporary taxable differences which could partly support
the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there are no
tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, profit would increase by approximately
RMB7,726,000.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in note
15.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

82

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary's equity
were allocated against the interests of the Group except to
the extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding
obligation and were able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated in the
same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or
a bargain purchase gain being recognised where appropriate.
For decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of whether
the disposals would result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries, the difference between the consideration
received and the adjustment to the non-controlling interests
was recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

84

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 January
2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes
and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e  liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of an acquiree's share-based payment transactions
with share-based payment transactions of the Group
are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwiill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by another
Standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit
or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January

2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that met the relevant conditions for
recognition were generally recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the recognised
amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group's interest
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the
acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if, the
contingent consideration was probable and could be measured
reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
were recognised against the cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for
as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step. Any
additional acquisition did not affect the previously recognised
goodwill.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

88

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or Groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use of the
asset or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the income statement in the period in which
it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

90

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Details are set out in note 13.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Where the Group acquires leasehold land held for own use
under a finance lease, the prepaid cost representing the fair
value of the leasehold land, is included in property, plant and
equipment, together with the related leasehold property. Both
these leasehold land and property are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
(an “ltem"”) comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the Item to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the Item has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the Item, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the Item.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

When, in the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment are below their carrying
amounts, provisions are made to write down the carrying
amounts of such assets to their recoverable amounts (see
also note 3g) above).

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an Item recognised
in the income statement is the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant Item, and
is recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets on
the straight-line method, based on the estimated economic
useful lives of the individual assets, after taking into account
their estimated residual value, if any, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land held for own use Over the
under finance leases lease term
Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Moulds 20%-33.33%
Leasehold improvements 10%
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

92

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
on these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

ii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals, if any,
are charged to the income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

SCUD GROUP LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2010

3. FESHEE®

ERIRERNERBRTZEEXBR
ZOFE - BERZE - FRIRRITK R
AHERKIEREZENZYE  BE

B ZEFEECHERBEARAR

ERBRZEE MY EEEMER < ZELER
JRLER -

i)

FEFHHEEEZ DS
AEBERFENHEEEE - WAHE
BARRLERCEREAEE 28
EEERBRARBETHERSA - UE
BECRPTE 2 EPARREE B R O FR A A
8 BEAKEHEE

HEHEEHR

ASEFEEKEHECHEE A
REMEFEHHNREEHEHAMR
EetHRA - UEEE R R
B BanE R AR BB R
HEEBEMELE K BEARIFRIN - &
LHEWZMY MEBREESE RS
R HER R EF AR R A AR A
oo HBHES(MB)EEEENES
HR AR SRR



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Distribution network 10 years
Domain names 3 years
Employee contracts 2.57 years
Non-compete agreements 2 years
Software 10 years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

3. EESTHHEX#®)

BYWBBVEE

BYKBREBEECRFEHNELEE
T5 PARK 7S 2 5 36 N (A7) REDRUE SRR
(WA) - ZEBEERFHNETLEES
MR B AR EE R A ET A A BB -
ST EEVEERGERTEAFHR
FRZSR: B 12 REDRER1ESIRR

7SR AR 104
54 36
EEEH 2574
THF i 24
EILS 1045

BOEMRARVEEMESANER DR E
EREREFERZEENREEEZE
SHE WK 2B BEBUR R s R
ﬁ@wu"

T 95 05 B T E A 9 5 S FE L B A O B P

A2 (HAERE MFAERER)MHRA
MELANBLEE  SEREEABAT
PR 52 77 P HERR:

o EREEEMEERMEAAEL

EERM EEBRITTM ;

. E“ﬁmﬁkuiﬁﬁﬁ/éélﬁﬁﬁ‘kﬁjﬁé’]

D]

o BHENERIHEXENEE

—“T-THEFR REREEERAT 93
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

94

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include amount due from related
parties, trade and notes receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash,
and are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables.
Financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment losses.
Any changes in their value are recognised in the income
statement. Significant financial difficulties of debtors, such as
the probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the receivables are impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at the
end of each reporting period whether or not there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Impairment loss on loans and receivables is recognised
when there is objective evidence that the company will not
be able to collect all the amounts due to it in accordance
with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss is determined as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows.

3. EESTHHEX#®)

MBEE
AEENTBEERRERKRBAEALR
B REESRERREE R REME
WikIE - EERBRITERRRITERRER
T WD B RIIBRRE SRR EYFIR -
MBEENEE AR ER -

Bk e MR TR R A B RE S I B RE 5 KRR
BYFRARTISHRENIETEMBE
E - B MEWHIER AT EETIRE
R BB AE BRI ORI ERA A HIBR R
BEEER - HEENTAZSHIN KRS
RIER - EHALBRERMBEERE - 07T
REWESGETHBER - RIERSEEN
HEE - 9HRRRYTRTORIEZ B o

MBEER AMBEERBCR 2 RARER
JE B A B R T B SR R A R AR AR D
B K [B] $REF A | EFERR

WAETIE DR & S B AR ETTA
i WRERDAREEBRBRTVBEE
H—AMBEELRRE EEREER
& AR R AT REIR IR E FE MR IR B 15K
Y Bl pr A B EASROR - RIFER B R S MR
HRRERE - REBBRNSRDEER
BERHERMGBFRRRESRBAEBZE
B o

“T-TEEH REREEERAFN 95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
ma

B e R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE —Z—ZH&+_-HA=+—HILF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

m) Financial instruments (Continued)

96

n)

Financial liabilities

The Group financial liabilities include amount due to related
parties, bank loans, trade and notes payables, other payables
and accrued charges. Financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transactions costs incurred and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Chinese Renminbi. As at the end
of reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period,
and their income statements are translated into Chinese
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recorded in other
comprehensive income and the cumulative balance is included
in translation reserve in the statement of changes in equity. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in exchange reserve relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Chinese Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arises throughout the year are translated
into Chinese Renminbi at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

98

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates that have been audited or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as follows:-

i) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed, which means that all
the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE —Z—ZTH&+ - H=+—HILF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

100

i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

iii)  Processing income

Processing income is recognised when processing services
are provided.

Government grants in the form of incentive payments are
recognised as income and reported separately as “other
income” when the government’s approval of grant is
unconditional.

Government grants related to new products research costs are
recognised in the income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the related costs and deducted in reporting
the related expenses.

i) Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

ii)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and contributions to the retirement schemes
operated by the relevant authorities for employees
of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC") are recognised as an expense in the income
statement as incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised
as an expense.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

iii) Termination benefits

iv)

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of services received, determined by
reference to the fair value of shares options granted to the
employees at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets, which are

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get

ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of

those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned

on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending

their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing

costs are charged to the income statement in the period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—F—F#+-A=+—HILFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

102

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition, less advances from
banks repayable within three months from the date of the
advance. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Group and the party are subject to common control
or common significant influence;

i)  the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group;

iii)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in i) or ii);

iv)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in ii) or iii); or

v)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that
is a related party of the Group.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Boards
that makes strategic decisions.
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 Operating Segments with effect
from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision makers in order to allocate resources to segments
and to assess their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (IAS 14 Segment Reporting) required an entity to
identify two sets of segments (business and geographical),
using a risks and returns approach, with the entity’s system
of internal financial reporting to key management personnel
serving only as starting point for the identification of such
segments.

The Group is currently engaged in the business of the Group’s
own brands “SCUDFRTERE"” brand and “Chaolitongit 738"
brand, original equipment manufacturing (“OEM business”)
as well as bare battery cells. The chief operating decision
makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the segment
information of these businesses and based on it to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
Group's reportable segments are set out below:-

Own-brand “SCUDFRERER"” brand — Manufacture and sale of
“SCUDRERR" brand rechargeable battery packs, chargers,
bluetooth earphones and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebook computers, digital cameras and other
electronic appliances.

Own-brand “Chaolitong#& /738" brand — Manufacture and
sale of “Chaolitongi& /138" brand rechargeable battery packs,
chargers and related accessories for mobile phones, digital
cameras and other electronic appliances.

OEM - Manufacture and sale of rechargeable battery packs,
chargers and related accessories for mobile phones for branded
mobile phone manufacturers within and outside China by way
of OEM.

Bare battery cells — Manufacture and sale of bare battery cells
for mobile phones.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in-progress.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZ=-ZF—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFF

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &XZERoIPER 2)

104

(Continued)
b) Reportable segments (Continued) b) HIRD (&)
Segment information about these businesses are presented BAZSEBNDEER 25T ¢

as follows:

Segment revenue and results

Group A5ME
2010 2009
“E-%% ZITNE
Own-brand Own-brand
husiness business
BRREEY BEREER
SCUD Chaolitong OEM Bare battery SCUD  Chaolitong OEM  Bare battery
brand brand  business cellsbusiness  Others Total brand brand  business cells business Others Total
RERGE ENBRE OIMEE EUEER £t @i RERTE BNREDE  OMER  ENRR At @
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARETRn ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Total Turnover HEXE 4817 204,620 433599 143577 71530 1,568,143 696001 202399 297,190 NAMEE 69,279 1,264,869
Less: Internal sales W HEE - - - (406%) - (40,69) = = - NATER = =
Turnover BE 714817 204620 433599 102879 71,530 1527445 696001 202399 297,190 NAPER 69,279 1,264,869
Segment resuls HHFE 55019 (17,783) 15,042 8815 53 61716 66327 (070)  (7458) NAATER (693) 55,106
Unallocated income RARRA 2,290 1,770
Unallocated expenses FAERET (4,790) (6,637)
Finance costs BERK (1,602) (1,39
Profit before taxation BbianaA 57,614 48,849
Taxation fig (5,452) (2,931)
Profit for the year REE &R 52,162 45918
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. #XHER I IPER (@)
(Continued)
b) Reportable segments (Continued) b) HIZEDIB(E)
Segment information about these businesses is presented as ERAZSEBNDBERZFNET (&)
follows: (Continued)
Assets and liabilities BEREBE
Group A&E
2010 2009
-2-%F ZITNE
Own-brand Own-brand
business business
BERBER BEREEHE
SCUD  Chaolitong OEM  Bare hattery SCUD  Chaolitong OEM  Bare battery
brand brand business  cells business Total brand brand business  cells business Total
RERGE EOBERE  OIMER  EREE i RIBRE  Endak OMEE  BUEE @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETr AR%Tn AR®Tr ARETn  ARETR ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Segment assets PHEE 582,937 324153 269,034 117,686 1,293,810 418,923 308,286 129,568 NATER 856,777
Unallocated corporate assets AAEATEE
- Current tax recoverable  — AW ENERRE 330 7,146
- Pledged bank deposits ~ —E HFREH 84,482 90,911
- Bank halances and cash  —Ri7EERES 304,573 390,884
- Others —Eft 88,535 152,921
Consolidated total assets A LZEE 1,711,730 1,498,639
Segment liabilities AREE 169,927 59,534 50976 40,630 321,067 62,413 62,395 2839 NATER 127,647
Unallocated corporate liabilties A B A& & 164,150 132,860
Consolidated total liabilities 5428 485,217 260,507
“F-E5H REREMARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z—ZF—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFF

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)

EXRERTHBER @)

Other information o HtEHR
Group A58
2010 2009
%-%F ZETNE
Own-brand Own-brand
business business
HERBER BRRMER
SCUD Chaolitong OEM Bare battery SCUD  Chaolitong OEM Bare battery
brand brand  business cellsbusiness  Others Total brand brand ~ business cells business Others Total
REERE BHBRE OIMER EUER it & AZRaE BOAGE  OMER  BUER Aft oy
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETH ARETT ARETR
Additions to property,  REWE - HiR
plant and equipment G 126,011 m9 2113 26,406 18811 174,180 21,636 381 623 NATER 4,565 33,205
Additions to sales TESRERES
counter decoration (BENEENZ
(included in leasehold L)
improvements) 7,020 - - - - 700 35972 - - NAER - hon
Additions to intangible ~ FEEFEE
assets 1,500 - - 81 2,5 3,826 - - - NATER 25 25
Depreciation of property, ~ #% * BER
plant and equipment e 14,657 1,605 7453 2891 15783 42389 11470 1,460 8436 NATEE 16752 38118
Amortisation of sales SRERRERY
counter decoration (RERNEENZ
(included in leasehold £BMm)
improvements) 35,521 - - - - 355 47462 - - NARER - 442
Amortisation of BRAERH(NE)
intangible assets (Note) - 9,903 - - 474 10377 = 10,378 - NARER - 10378
Impairment loss on BRAENEE
intangible assets (Note) ~ ES#E(HzE) -8 - - -8 - 165% - NARER - 16,59
Note: Impairment loss/amortisation of goodwill and other Mzt : FEUWEBHBEENHEREMD

intangible assets arising from the acquisition of
Chaolitong (see also notes 14 below for details).
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &XFRDHER (@)
(Continued)
d) Geographical information d HEEFR
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as AREW RS ZHETHE D AKE
analysis of the Group's carrying amount of each relevant BRBREEDITARAKESED FFH
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and MERERAEYR  BERKEBLAR
equipment and intangibles by geographical market have BEMREESN - RERSHEAED T
not been presented as they are substantially generated BIEE KN E -
from or situated in the PRC.
5. OTHER REVENUE 5. Hitslz
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt e AR®T T AREF T
Interest income FBUA 3,266 4,724
Foreign exchange gain b 5 Was 1,975 330
Processing income hnT WA 1,363 1,545
Negative goodwill recognised BRABWRAZ BfE
as income 28 4,286 -
Sundry income Eflt A 252 132
11,142 6,731




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE =% —

TET_A=+—HIEFE

6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 6. BEHEF
Profit from operations is arrived at after charging (crediting): BEHFE MR (GEAATIER ¢
Group
rEH
(Restated)
(&%)
2010 2009
—g-g%  —TEIAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARF 5 ARBFT
Auditors’ remuneration: ZE RN & -
— current year provision —RFE R 1,650 1,662
— prior year (overprovision)/ —BEFE(BERE)
underprovision BETRE (29) 635
Depreciation of property, plant Y - WE RERENITE
and equipment (including (B IET I R BABE R A
depreciation capitalised in BWEREITE
research and development AR#6,322,0007T
costs of RMB6,322,000 —TTNEF
(2009: RMB6,611,000)) AR#6,611,0007T)) 42,389 38,118
Amortisation: By
— sales counter decoration —HEEEES
(included in leasehold (BREREEMEEERN)
improvements) 35,521 47,462
— intangible assets —EBREAE 10,377 10,378
Impairment loss recognised on EEWE 5B R EREE -
trade and notes receivables, TARRIE © e REM B
prepayments, deposits and RIBERABEEE
other receivables 1,602 59
Reversal of impairment loss EEWE 5B REREE -
recognised on trade and notes BRI ~ R R E A EI
receivables, prepayments, FRIB R AR (B B R [E]
deposits and other receivables (991) (594)
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BRE RZE
plant and equipment ELBE 918 1,845
Cost of inventories recognised ERARZH
as expenses FEKA 1,266,634 1,035,755
Operating lease rentals: KEHE
— office premises o YNEL Y ES 14,450 9,554
— machinery —es 72 -
Impairment loss recognised on:  Ft T FIHERKREEE
— goodwill —EmE - 6,200
— intangible assets —EmREE 18,217 10,394
Negative goodwill recognised BEREBANEEE
as income (4,286) =
Research and development costs  #ft 38 & FZEAK AN
(net of government grant of (EMBREATE B
RMB Nil ARKEET
(2009: RMB1,190,000)) (ZZZNEF : ARE1,190,0007T)) 33,127 23,551
Staff costs (note 7) B TR (FIEE7) 96,875 65,948
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7. STAFF COSTS

BT

Group
TEE
2010 2009
—EB-BF —TThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
Directors’ remuneration (note 8) ==& (FE8) 1,110 1,180
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR 96,861 66,287
Retirement benefits scheme RIRRRAET SR
contributions 6,884 2,920
Less: Staff costs included in W T AR R A EKAR
research and development #) 8 TR
costs (7,980) (4,439)
96,875 65,948

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

a) The information disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the

EEkEEME

a) WREEEBEQAGHIEZ16ERRENE R

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: R
Group
REH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEFTT
Fees ik 294 1,164
Salaries e 796 =
Other emoluments: HEme -
Retirement benefits RIREFIETE
scheme contributions K 20 16
1,110 1,180
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e B MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—F—F#+-A=+—HILFZ

8. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

8. EEREEME »

(Continued)
b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors are b) AEERESZMHMESFIBNT :
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-BF EENE
Retirement Retirement
Benefits Benefits
scheme scheme
contri- Total contri- Total
Salaries Fees butions  emoluments Salaries Fees butions  emoluments
BIER RINER
e k2 SR e s e AEIER aps
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR%Tr ARETR AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:
Fang Jin ik - - 5 5 - - 4 4
Guo Quan Zeng EifS 500 - 5 505 - 500 4 504
Huang Yan (note i) ~ E(fifzEi) 76 - 5 81 - - - -
Zhang Li (note i) SRER(FzH) - - - - - - - -
Loke Yu (note i) FE@#k(Hisii) - 174 - 174 - 103 - 103
Wang Jing Zhong &R - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60
Wang Jian Zhang ~ TEE - 60 - 60 - 60 = 60
Lin Chao (note iv)  #iiB(HizEiv) - - - - - - 4 4
Li Hui Quu (note v) ~ Z &k (Fizky) 220 - 5 225 - 220 4 224
Heng Kwoo Seng B (Fitzhvi)
(note vi) - - - - - 57 - 57
Ho Man (note vi)  fal&(PifsEvii) - - - - - 164 = 164
Total Bt 796 294 20 1,110 - 1,164 16 1,180
Notes: BIEE
(i)  appointed as director on 30 December 2009; () RZZEENF+_A=THEZEAE
TE

(i) appointed as director on 31 December 2010; (i) RZZE—ZFF+-_RA=+—HEZ{E

(iii) appointed as director on 14 May 2009; (i AZZEZNFRATHEHEZEA
TE

(iv) resigned as director on 30 December 2009; (ivy RZZEZTNF+_A=1+THEE
BE

(v) resigned as director on 31 December 2010; V) RZZTE—ZTF+ZA=+—HEE
TE

(vi) resigned as director on 14 May 2009; (vi) RZZETNFREATHBEREES

(vii) resigned as director on 20 October 2009. (i) RZZ2ZNEF AT HEHEES -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

(Continued)

Q)

2

The five highest paid individuals include two directors for the Q)
year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: two), details of whose
emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2009: three non-

BEENEEME @

BE-F-FFT-A=+-ALFE:
AEEBFMALEERE(ZBTAS
ME)EE - REZMEFFERRLX -

E#HR=R(Z2Z

NE: ZRFER)RS

director) highest paid individuals are as follows: FIATHB ST
Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREETTT
Salaries, bonus, allowance — #& - 884 ER K
and other benefits EaF 1,874 1,759
Retirement benefits scheme RIKIEFIFHE]
contributions HK 21 21
1,895 1,780

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest paid

individuals are within the following bands:

HEMBEaHMEFESALTHMESN FUT

#[E

2009
—EFNF
Nil to RMB870,800 =T = AR¥870,8007T
(equivalent to Nil to (Z%RZEZ%1,000,00057T)
HKD1,000,000) 2 2
RMB870,800 to AR#870,8007T= AR 1,306,2007T
RMB1,306,200 (%d1,000,0017LZ1,500,00077T)
(equivalent to
HKD1,000,001 to
HKD1,500,000) 1 1
—T-TEEH REREDAR2A 0 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z—ZF—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFF

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION 8. EEREEM £ »)

(Continued)
d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group d RMEFEA  AEEBERT LR
to the five highest paid individuals (including both directors AT (BRERESREE )XNEANME -
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining YER TR SIS 5= [ 5 hn A 7S 52 (B e 1 42
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the B SKAREBMAOME - RREFEA -
directors has waived any emoluments during both years. WRBEREEMME -
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BEMA
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—s-¥F  —TThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFFIE 2,490 1,390
Interest on discounted JFEUR BEER 45 B F S (B )
notes receivable
(without recourse) 489 -
2,979 1,390
Less: amounts capitalised in B B BREEENMCEE
qualifying assets (927) -
2,052 1,390
The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed NEEESBAEARANNETLANEBERSF
generally is 5.31% per annum (2009: Nil). H*E5.31% °
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10. TAXATION

No provision for taxation has been made by the Company as it is
not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other jurisdictions save
for the PRC where it conducts its principal business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong Kong
during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong
incurred tax losses during the year.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on the
estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the rate of
taxation applicable for the period.

Scud Electronics and Scud Battery are foreign investment enterprises
located in Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC. Scud
(Shenzhen), Chaolitong Technology and Shenzhen Hongde are
foreign investment enterprises located in Shenzhen, PRC. Both Mawei
District and Shenzhen are designated as an Economic Development
Zone. Accordingly, Scud Electronics, Scud Battery, Scud Shenzhen,
Chaolitong Technology and Shenzhen Hongde were subject to an
income tax rate of 15%.

Pursuant to the PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises, Detailed Rules and Regulations
for the Implementation of PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign
Investment Enterprise and Foreign Enterprises and the approval
documents Rongkai Guo Shui Zheng [2003] No.72 and Rongkai Guo
Shui Zheng [2007] No.4 issued by Fuzhou Branch Tax Bureau on 15
May 2003 and 7 February 2007, respectively, Scud Electronics and
Scud Battery were entitled to an exemption from PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for two years commencing from its first profit-making
year of operation and a 50% relief from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the next three years (“2+3 tax holidays”).

Accordingly, Scud Electronics was exempted from income tax
from 1 January 2002 to 31 December 2003 and was subject to
income tax at 7.5% from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2006.
In 2007, Scud Electronics was recognised as a “foreign-invested
advances technology enterprise”. Scud Electronics has extended the
preferential income tax rate for three more years and has enjoyed
an effective tax rate of 10% from 2007 to 2010.

10. Fi1E

HRARREASMFEREREMAEER
MRIE  BREAEE T EEKLERAENT
BIH)IRIRSN - AN AR EAE LIRS o

HREMFAREENEMNRIFRBBEL -
TRIERBEE - MAEREE MR E
REHRFASFRIERE - B BEAEE
FSTE LA -

PEMEMASHREETIREN B R E AR
e BBIA A SR AT BRTA AL ©

REBEFMREBREMSLN T EEZERE
MmERERNINERE - FINRER - BNE
BHR SRR R AL R A BRI SN E % -
FREERRIIGEEERQERER - Fitt
REBRET - REBRED  FINRER B
BRI RORY BB RHZ15% B PTS 0 R -

BERENECERBEICENRETE &
B AR B ANE 1 2E R B AN BE ) TS B RO R AR
RAIRAG - URBNBEBEDBR_TZT=F
FATHEBEBERR=ZZFEZTLF-_AELHELMN
S b 314 45 B B B Bk (200317255 K 4 B B B B
[2007]4%% - REMREFRRERE D EEAE
B (B4R & R 4F [ RB 5 A PR 8 IV 3R 2 40 4R R
BEMER  UERRAR=FZH50%HF
BB ER(Me= Ry HsER]) -

Bt - REBEFH-_TT_F—H—HE_T
T=F+ " A=1+—HAMLHNSH - TH
—ERENMF-A-HEZERF+_A=1—
BRRT 5% ISR EGHR - R_FTTLF -
REBREFRABAIRIMERELRIMEZE] - R
EREFESBEEMSHEBLER=F - ¥H_—
TRLFE_T-TFEZHI0%NERHRE -

—E-TEER REBEEERLF 113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE =% —

TET_A=+—HIEFE

10. TAXATION (conTINUED)

114

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress promulgated the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law
(“the new Enterprise Tax Law"), which took effect on 1 January
2008. As a result of the new Enterprise Tax Law, the statutory income
tax rate for enterprises in the PRC has been reduced from 33%
to 25%. On 6 and 26 December 2007, the State Council released
the Detailed Rules and Regulations for the Implementation of PRC
Enterprises Tax Law (“Implementation Rules”) and Guo Fa [2007]
No. 39 Notice on Carrying out the Transitional Preferential Policies
concerning Corporate Income Tax (“Circular 39"”), respectively.

The new Enterprise Tax Law, its Implementation Rules and Circular
39 provide a 5-year transitional period from 1 January 2008 for
those entitles which were established before 16 March 2007 and
which were entitled to a preferential lower income tax rate under
the effective tax laws and regulations, as well as grandfathering
on the 2+3 tax holidays. The transitional tax rates are 18%, 20%,
22%, 24% and 25% for calendar years 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012 onwards, respectively.

Pursuant to the new Enterprise Tax Law and the approval document
Rongkai Guo Shui Zheng [2009] No.150 on 30 April 2009, Scud
Electronics was recognised as an Advanced and New Technology
Enterprise (“ANTE") under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law for
a period of 3-year effective retroactively from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2010. Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law Article
28, a recognised ANTE is entitled to a reduced income tax rate of
15%. Accordingly, Scud Electronics is subject to income tax at 15%
from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.

Scud Battery started to enjoy the tax exemption from 2007 and
the 50% tax relief from 2009. Scud Battery was subject to income
tax rate at 10% in 2009 and 11% in 2010.
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10. BLIE (%)

RZZZ+F=A+ B B+EZEARRK
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁa%ﬁgﬁkﬂ@#liﬁﬁﬁm
FEY([FEEFED U =TTN\F—HA—H
ii&oﬂﬁ%¢¥ﬁ£'¢ﬁﬁ¥m%i%
BHHEEA3B%RE25% R LF+
_H/\H& TL/\E .%XB%/\)%'JﬁE%(CP.i
EBUEBEHFARARER) (B &
CEITSPr BRN E e b ZATS F B B BB R
FH(EIEE[20071395% ) ([ 395 MmA ) °

MERE - BEOIREIGRBAFE - AT
BER-_ZEELFE=A+NBRKYNEE T
ZERFNHKEERBES AT NF—
A—HBRA%R  BEAIREERAEBNFERE
RERENEEMEHEAT  ANZFET
AR ME=REFBER - RZZTZTN
—”*—EtMﬂﬁmT“mﬁm%\m%~
22% ~ 24% [225% ©

BERCERERNR-_ZZAFMA=1+HE
i B9 2 Bt S48 7 B B 3[2009]1505% - R E
REFREFRCEMGSHZAERTE BRI
e EMEMEED  ERAR=F ' &
PE-ZTZTN\F—A—HABRE_T—ZF+=
A=+—H1E - BREFECEMRBBIEE =1
NIE - —E S ET R 1 3 AT IR A 1 S % 2 AN P
BBt REREFE_FTZNF—H—
HE-Z—ZF+_-A=1+—BHMARH=
15% BN FTISHL ©

REREMH ST+ FRARZEHIERR
FH-ZEZENFREEREHEESR - RER
BHMR_ETNFR T —TFHFIERE
10% & 11 % SN FTIS T



10. TAXATION (conTINUED)

Pursuant to the PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises, Detailed Rules and
Regulations for the Implementation of PRC Law of Income Tax
of Foreign Investment Enterprise and Foreign Enterprises and
the approval documents Shen Guo Shui Long Bu Jian Mian [2008]
No.4, Shen Guo Shui Bao Fu lJian Mian [2007] No.0111 and
Shen Guo Shui Nan Jian Mian [2006] No.0060 issued by Shenzhen
Branch Tax Bureau on 8 January 2008, 10 September 2007 and
9 March 2006, respectively, Chaolitong Technology, Scud
Shenzhen and Shenzhen Hongde are entitled to an exemption
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years commencing from
its first profit-making year of operation to a 50% relief from
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the next three years.

Chaolitong Technology and Scud Shenzhen started to enjoy the
tax exemption from 2008 and the 50% tax relief from 2010.
Shenzhen Hongde started to enjoy the tax exemption from 2007
and the 50% tax relief from 2009. Chaolitong Technology, Scud
Shenzhen and Shenzhen Hongde was subject to income tax rate
at 11% in 2010.

According to the new Enterprise Tax Law announced by the
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007, the Implementation
Rules and Guo Fa [2007] No.39 released by the State Council
on 6 December 2007 and 26 December 2007, respectively, the
tax exemptions granted to Scud Battery, Chaolitong Technology
and Scud Shenzhen can be continued until their respective
expiry dates.

Details of the taxation in the consolidated income statement are
as follows:

10. BLIE (%)

BIERENECERBEIENAESEE &
)J'Tﬂ‘:PIM\ﬁJJ:%&.M\JJ:%E']ﬁﬁ SF AR A
FAIRRE - URFNEBEIBIIR_EE
Ai—ﬂﬂa»:%@tihﬂ+a&f§$
ANFE=ZANBEHOESXHFRERETRE
[2008]45% « & B % & 48 & %2[2007]101115% &
FEFFE % [2006]00605% © BB -
JIRERERIBEB AR S ELE Féﬂi
ERFTHMFENERBEMNT R BEMRESH -
LERARKR=ZFZH50%NFRCEMEHRE
R o

BB RN RERE ST N\FREE
ﬁE%ﬁ WYH-E-—SFREFRBRFE
FUBER TS LFREEFHIERR -
mf77h¢¥EMEm¥@% B h@EE
&~%Wﬁ%%&%%%%%:%—%¢&
T %EFEEH -

*ETF%IAER%%KQEAf?@ti*Hﬂ—/—\
DT EERE  URBEBREI IR =-Z
ft¢+ ARNBRZZEZEFF+ZA=+X
B 28 17 &) Z e 15 5 DA &2 B 3£[2007]395% + &% T
FREBRE M - BB RORYIRERBERH
SUEHEESEMNERBBRAL -

u+)\nﬂ'\/\l& ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁuﬂ ;ZD—F:

Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREFIT
Current tax — PRC BNERFRIE —
Enterprise Income Tax REMEH
Tax for the year RNEERIA 14,199 6,065
Underprovision/(overprovision) NEFERETR,
for previous year (BE#EE) 51 (72)
Deferred tax (Note 15) EFERIA (FRE15) 1,788 3,003
Taxation iiE 16,038 8,996
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE =% —

—BEL_A=+—HIFE

10. TAXATION (conTinUED)

116

The reconciliation between profit before taxation and taxation in

the consolidated income statement is as follows:

10. BLIE (%)

RERAUZERA - G AR EL AT I B 8 50 ¥
RN

Group
TEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT

Profit before taxation R A A 68,200 54,914
Tax at income tax rate of 25% RS E25% T B FiIE

(2009: 25%) (ZZEZNF: 25%) 17,050 13,728
Tax effect of different tax rates of 7E & Ath RIEHE [ 4% & i & 2 A

subsidiaries operating BN R ENT B R

in other jurisdictions (1,252) 169
Tax effect of expenses not ARINF A R IE R 2

deductible for tax purposes 9,278 9,768
Tax effect of income not taxable ~ BEARBU AW LT E

for tax purposes (575) (268)
Tax effect of temporary differences 4Bl Ak i SR 55 B = 28 O T 75 7 28

not previously recognised 2 (3,127)
Underprovision/(overprovision) ARTFEEBE TR CRERE

in prior years 51 (72)
Tax effect of tax losses RERMIBEEONETE

not recognised 3,748 1,795
Tax effect of withholding tax REBRAEAREME

at 5% on the distributable BRSO 8 A B Y

profits of the Group’s A 53k 4 M3E5 %

subsidiaries established in TR R TS 2

the People’s Republic of China 1,520 1,900
Effect of concessionary rate PN E AR BRI RER

granted to the PRC subsidiaries T E (13,784) (14,897)
Taxation WA 16,038 8,996
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11. DIVIDENDS 1M1. KRB

The board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the EEGRETHBE_T—ZEF+_A=+T—
year ended 31 December 2010 to preserve cash for the working HIEFERREARARE  HMRBEE
capital requirement of the business. NEBHDEESTK -
A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 of HK$0.02 REBEEZZE-—ZFT_A=T—HIEFE
per share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately N BRNBEZE_ZZENF+_A=1T—H
RMB18,006,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year LEFERRAREGR0.02BTTAREN AREK
ended 31 December 2010. 18,006,0007T FAER °

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. 8RB F
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AAAlE=TE ARG ERERNREERTIR
attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on the BUATEERTE -

following data:

Group

£33
2010 2009
—s-%% —EThEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TT ARBT T

Earnings for the purposes of basic #t & &MREAREF| K& #5E 8 AT
and diluted earnings per share (KRB E A ARFEE &)
(profit for the year attributable
to the equity holders of
the Company) 54,350 46,837
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z=—ZF—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFF

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

118

12. 3R ER (&)

Number of ordinary shares

ZERHA
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
‘000 ‘000
BF5t LATFET
Weighted average number ST EERERRTR
of ordinary shares for the LA InHE a8
purpose of basic
earnings per share 1,032,001 1,028,713
Effect of dilutive potential SN ETes: i P RSy
ordinary shares: VR
— share options — B 9,105 7,112
— consideration shares to be — g B — AR B R Al P T 21T
issued for the acquisition ZRERD
of a subsidiary - 3,288
9,105 10,400
Weighted average number of FTEEREERR
ordinary shares for the purpose  H)E A HIEF 5L
of diluted earnings per share 1,041,106 1,039,113
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - BERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Land under furniture Leasehold
finance lease Plant and Motor and fixtures Construction Improvements
MEMAE  Buiding Machinery  Vehies  EFRE: in progress Moulds g Total

BT By HEREZ RE  EAR%E  HEIR B NREE aif
RMB'OOD  RMBODO  RMBOOO  RMB'00D  RMB'O00  RWBOOO  RMB'OO  RMB'OOD  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARETT  ARMTR

(Restated)
(&)

Group 150
Cost A
1 January 2009 “2ENE-A-A 12,904 - 14364 9,19 66,846 48938 37,140 8435 383738
Additions HE - - 1,159 741 2,786 25,135 3305 36,031 69,177
Transfer from construction in progress BEERERIR - - 24 - 1697 (1.921) = = =
Disposals if - - - 9) - - (7.622) - (7,714)
31 December 2009 “ETAET=AZ1-H 12,004 - 154 9,845 71309 7,15 3083 120381 445201
Additions E - 97 54,862 132 11,185 65,662 190 8965 163,113
Additions through acquisition RiE-FREAR

of a subsidiary 23 - - 14972 81 2,054 - - 90 18,087
Transfer from construction in progress SREERIR - 105,870 3,582 - 1776 (132,711) - 21,483 -
Exchange adjustment ERRZ - - - - (5) - - - (5
Disposals if - - (2,819 (856) (846) - - (897) (5,418)
31 December 2010 “2-351-A=t-8 12004 106797 196344 10,392 85,493 5,103 B3 170912 620978
Depreciation i 3
1 January 2009 “2ENE-5-A 661 - 18,102 312 31,255 - 19,078 23,091 95,309
Charge for the year KREERR 258 - 10,962 1,084 12,573 - 7373 53,330 85,580
Transfer af - - 1,780 - (1,780) = = = =
Disposals il - - - (28) - - (5793) - (5,821)
31 December 2009 “2EAFTA=1-A 919 - 30844 4178 4,088 - 20658 76,421 175,068
Charge for the year KEERR 258 - 13,824 1,165 11,360 - 4178 47,125 77,910
Exchange adjustment ERAZ - - - - @) - - = )
Disposals & - - (1,064) (516) (455) - - (897) (2,930)
31 December 2010 Z2-BE1AZ1-H 1177 - 43,604 4827 52,949 - 4836 10649 250,042
Net book value FEFE
31 December 2010 “3-251A=1-H m2 106797 152,740 5,565 32,544 5,103 8,197 48263 370,936
31 December 2009 “EENE+-A=t-R 11,985 - 94,903 5,667 29,081 72,15 12,185 83960 270,133
1 January 2009 “TENE-A-A 12,43 - 106262 6,074 35,501 48938 18,062 61259 288429
Certain motor vehicles have been pledged by the Group in favour REERHETAEERTRIT  (ER—EE
of a bank to secure a bank loan granted by a bank to the Group TTERMER (SR TXHEE26)

(see also note 26 below).



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZ—ZF—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFF

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B &EE
Distribution Trade names ~ Domain  Employee Non-compete
network and patents names  contracts agreements  Goodwill  Software Total
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii)
AHEE REEH H&  EBRH THIHE BE Bt &3t
(Bsk) (Wi (Pzii)
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Group 158
Cost A
1 January 2009 “EENE-5-A 97,664 106,182 74 58 350 22,849 3,699 230,876
Additions #m - - - - - - 25 25
Subsequent adjustment to the FAREHEREE
contingent consideration - - - - - (10,459) - (10,459)
31 December 2009 ZEENETSA=T-A 97,664 106,182 74 58 350 12,390 3,724 220,442
Additions )l - - - - - - 3745 3745
Acquisition through business combination ~ EBEEAHNE - - - - - - 81 81
Disposal mE - - = = = = (30) (30)
Subsequent adjustment to the FRREH AR
contingent consideration - (5,224) - - - (6,190) - (11,414)
31 December 2010 ZE-ZEt-A=1-H 97,664 100,958 74 58 350 6,200 750 21284
Amortisation and impairment BERAE
1 January 2009 “TZNE--B 4883 - 12 11 8 - 899 5,893
Charge for the year REERR 9,766 - 25 23 175 - 389 10,378
Impairment loss HERE - 103% - - - 6,200 - 165%
31 December 2009 ZEENEToA=T-A 14,649 10,394 37 34 263 6,200 1,288 32,865
Charge for the year TEEHR 9,767 - 25 24 87 - a4 10377
Disposals HE - - - = = = (30) (30)
Impairment loss HERE - 1817 - - - - - 1827
31 December 2010 “2-EBErCA=t+-H uM6 28611 62 58 350 6,200 1732 61,49
Net carrying amount REFE
31 December 2010 “2-BETA=1-H BUS T34 12 - - - 578 151,395
31 December 2009 ZEENET-A=T-R 83015 95788 3 U 87 6,190 2436 181577
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

i)

iii)

Distribution network represents the sales network of the
“ChaolitongiB /138" brand, covering second tier and third
tier cities, towns and villages in the PRC. It is expected that
Chaolitong’s distribution network will offer positive growth
prospect for the Group and retrieved the present insufficiency
of the Group’s distribution channel in such region.

Trade names and patents comprise 7 trade names and 3
patents held by Chaolitong. The trade name of “Chaolitong
FB713B" is a popular brand which has obtained the general
recognition of consumers in rural areas and second tier and
third tier cities in the PRC. Trade names and patents have
been allocated to the single cash generating unit (“CGU"),
Chaolitong. The recoverable amount has been determined
based on fair value less costs to sell. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period which has been
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate ranging from
8% to 20%. These growth rates are based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and do not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 19%. Another key
assumption for the fair value less costs calculations is the pre-
tax royalty rate of 2.75% which is determined based on the
discussions with management, review of publicly available data
on trade names and patents and the guideline royalties. The
fair value less costs to sell calculated by using the discount
rate is lower than the carrying amount.

As a result, an impairment of trade names and patents of
RMB18,217,000 (2009: RMB10,394,000) was provided in the
current year. The loss is included in “Administrative expenses”
in the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the “Chaolitong % /7
i@" brand is attributable to the anticipated revenue growth,
profitability, future market development and anticipated future
operating synergies from the combination.

Goodwill has been allocated to the single cash generating
unit (“CGU"), Chaolitong. The recoverable amount has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period
which has been extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
ranging from 8% to 20%. These growth rates are based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and do not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17%.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculations is
the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on the
CGU's past performance and management’s expectations over
the market development. The value in use calculated by using
the discount rate is lower than the carrying amount of the
CGU. As a result, an impairment of goodwill of RMB6,200,000
was made in the year of 2009. No further impairment of
goodwill was made in the current year.

14. B EE #)
B

i)

iii)

7 8 M 4546 Chaolitongit® /7 38 | M8 A9 7
ERBE= - =T R R A A58 S
HERLE - BABIBNDHEBEB AL
SEREEIAER  WRHETASEER
TR D SHRER TR o

R E B R B IER BT A B 71E R 8
EA3IFEF| o [ ChaolitongiB 1138 | &I 7
EAEXEUNME ESPE=- =&
T 4R SR [ B A A LB RR A o b
BRESEEIE —BHRIReEAEM([R
SELEM]) BBHE - aJdkEEEE
TRBAFERHEKAETE - ZTEE
AREEEEM ERERFHNMKESE
IR RTER - BAN TF8%220% 2 T8
HIgRREH SR ERIREARBT
HWEIERETE A THBBBEMITENT
HEMHER - WERTERER Z AR X
19% ° St ERFERKAFN S —EAEE
BREABEREEBETE - BHME
HER R ARSEE RIS ERSIEE
T AT E B R2.75% ~ ABRIR R+ E
BAFER L ERANERERE -

it RAFEH ARY18,217,0007T
—ETNE : AR%10,394,0007T) 27 5
[ B BRI B 1 H B o X BB ThRT ALR
BUEERN[ITHAS ] -

I B85 ChaolitonghE 738 | MM EE 2 B E
THREHEE 2 EHKEIE R - &5 6
7 RRMIBERERBRARREEREH
#FTE ©

BEO R E —BHIRSELEM([R
SEEBAM])  BIFBAE - AJUkEEEE T
BEFERAEEFEET - 2B ERARE
EEEMERERFHENTRBENES
RIEH  ERN T8 E20% 2 TEEEE
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AEFERAEERNS —HAEEREARE
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

15.

122

Notes:

iv)  The Group carries annual impairment tests for goodwill and
trade names and patents with indefinite useful lives, or more
frequently if there are indications that these intangible assets
might be impaired. The acquired distribution network, non-
compete agreements, employee contracts, domain names
and software are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
respective estimated useful lives.

v)  The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included

in “Administration expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the

4. B EE#)

BIEE

iv) AEEUHEERBRENEENDERE
METERRERH iﬂﬁﬂﬂ/ﬁﬁ*ﬁ
KATRER(E - B SE A0SR b #E 1T LB A
PTIREE 2 2 SHABAE - T8 ?Tﬁu&‘1§§
) BARBHLAERERRESRBEZ
SHERFRETTH -

0 2
=z

Fop -

v) AEERIANEBHEAXERGEAKaER
[FTER% BT o

15. CERNELEH EEEREE

FAEWEF/—WM‘%#%%@% VIR T B IR

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements BE/(ABE) MY REBHIT:
during the year are as follows:
Impairment Impairment
loss on loss on
property, trade and Accelerated  Undistributed
plant and other accounting profits of
equipment receivables  depreciation subsidiaries Total
EWEZHE
n% - BER REfRER =3 Bt 2 E Ay
REREEE FRERESE GEE AP BF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Group r&E
1 January 2009 R=ZEHhE-A-A 156 1,297 22 - 1,675
Charge to consolidated A WEER MR
income statement - (881) (222) (1,900) (3,003)
31 December 2009 RIZEFNF+-A=1+—H 156 416 - (1,900) (1,328)
Charge to consolidated AR R MR
income statement (156) (112) - (1,520) (1,788)
Reversal of temporary BOERtER
difference - - - 1,250 1,250
31 December 2010 RIZE-—ZF+-HA=t—H - 304 - (2,170) (1,866)
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15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (continued)

The Group other than its subsidiaries in the PRC had unused tax
losses of approximately RMB Nil (2009: RMB4,639,000) for offset
against future assessable profits. Such unused tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries had unused tax losses of approximately
RMB36,760,000 (2009: RMB33,680,000), that can be carried
forward for five years from the years in which the loss arose for
offsetting against future taxable profits of those subsidiaries.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
RMB36,760,000 (2009: RMB38,319,000) unused tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams for offsetting the unused
tax losses before expiry.

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the new Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The standard
withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the new Enterprise
Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27 of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the Detailed Implementation Rules
of the Enterprise Income Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax
rate has been reduced to 10%. Under the Arrangement between
the Mainland of China and Hong Kong Special Administration
Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention
of Fiscal Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR DTA, Hong Kong tax
residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC enterprise are entitled
to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to its
foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise Income
Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits generated by
a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008 shall be subjected
to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with the relevant articles
of the Enterprise Income Tax Law and its Detailed Implementation
Rules as described above. Accordingly, dividends receivable from
certain subsidiaries in respect of profits earned since 1 January
2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

15. RN ELHEEEREBE @)

BRAEENHENBARIN  AEBEAEA
MRBABERBABRNRRERTEN(—FTN
F: AR#¥4,639,0007T) - ZFEABAMNTIA
IR K AREE o

AEENFENELARBARB AN IERE
AR ¥36,760,000t( ZZ T NEF : AR
33,680,0007T) * AIAA#E A F - MATELEREE
AENZEN B R Al 2 KR ERFLRF o

FR P U 8 RI R 2R s N1 2ROIR DA 4K #0 72 B 2R Al
REHAMTIBEE WU ERHARE
36,760,000 (ZEZENF: AKH38,319,000
TO) R AR B AR IAEIERRIEERIEEE °

RBEFEEMEREE=GRE="T1K s
BIRECEMIFERINEREE DK Z KX
BANBRRIMBIT ANBREEMSH - RIF
MEEMBREENG  ERZEAREXA
20% ° MARBEEMFBESE - T EHEREZE
FIEBORBRGHE N+ —& - L@ mEH
BEBE10% ° RIBSAINE BRI 1TH %8
REFrGE 2 ESHBNG LRIRHAREE) -
REEHEPHE25%IIA FESENEENTE
R - REEH RS %A S I

ASRBEVHBEERREERR —ETN\F -
AT —BBERANCEARNEERENE TE
BHERMBEA) (FF[20081157) - —FFNEF
ZHNERECERERNRBERDEMNE - &
—TENFHUAROBAINEREEN - AT R
BEEMSEN : M_TENFHAERFEIIE
BREGCENFENEOMR - AR EABEMS
PORE BRI REFABERRVMBREERME
Be B ETHEARRE —_TENF—A
— A FIA ZE 15 1O )28 ) T e U B B B AR5 % HO TR
O -
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15.

16.

124

e MR

TET_A=t—HIEFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (continued)

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s share of aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB241,243,000
(2009:RMB209,347,000). Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the Group’s
share of temporary differences attributable to retained profits
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB197,843,000 (2009: RMB171,347,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

15.

CRANEEREEEREE ®)

R-ZE—ZTF+_A=+—HB ' ~&EEEHK
HEARNAPEKERRRERNE BT
EEA LD ARBE241,243,000( ZFE 1

& AR #209,347,0007T ) © AR A& B A
TH RO TR ERE o RKME BEREERT
BERETSED  WERAEEERGEEAR
AFENBEARRBRENEGZEREEELN
AR #197,843,000c( ZEZT N F : ARK
171,347,0007 ) AR & B 1§ TR 2k /E iR IEFi 18
B -

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 16. BN EBEE A LRI
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free JERBRAEATHRIBEAEET 2 REAR
and repayable on demand. EREFEE o
The information disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong RIEEB R AEBIE161BIKEH EMHER
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: UM
Maximum balance Balance at Balance at
during the year 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
RZZB-BF+=Zf RIZZNETA
FREEER =t—- BN =+—HH&EH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT T ARETT
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note i) BEREBRRMOBBRAR (D) 2,340 694 2,335
Fujian Netcom Technology Co., Ltd. (Note ii)  /REMAEHRAR AR (M i) 5,194 5,194 =
5,888 2,335
Notes: FaE

)) Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Stock”) is a company with
Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors
and shareholders. Mr. Lin Chao, substantial shareholder of the
Company, has 25% shareholding interest in Scud Stock.

i)  Fujian Netcom Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Netcom”) is a
company wholly owned by Mr. Fang Dong, the brother of
Mr. Fang Jin.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the amount due
from related parties approximate their fair value.
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17.

18.

INVENTORIES 17. FE
Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETAF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETRT AREETTT
Raw materials R 117,722 114,881
Work in progress F K an 59,658 37,270
Finished goods EERK i 21,113 6,966
Goods in transit TR Em 14,450 =
212,943 159,117
All inventories were stated at cost. FiBFEH AR AR °

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

18. BB Z AN EWREE

Group

£ EE
2010 2009
—EZ2-2F —EENEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥FR ARBT T

Trade receivables FEWE 5 5/ 335,207 265,969
Notes receivables FEUW R I% 49,539 16,159
384,746 282,128

Less: Allowance for bad and B RIBEREHE
doubtful debts (4,237) (3,890)
380,509 278,238

As at 31 December 2010, notes receivables of approximately
RMB18,315,000 (31 December 2009: Nil) have been pledged by
the Group in favour of a bank to secure notes payables (see also
note 20 below).

R-E—ZTF+-A=+—8  A£BEHED
AR#18,315,0007 L ( —EZENF+_A=+—
B : 8RR TRT - (ERENEE
HHER (S R T ME20) -
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18. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of allowance,

18. EWWE S RIEREWREE &)

RIBHZER - EHRBEERNRE BEERE
B EIE 53R K IR IRHIRE DT T

is as follows:

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-EF T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
0 to 60 days 0£60X 272,013 212,433
61 to 180 days 612180k 98,300 63,539
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 9,234 1,973
1 to 2 years —ZEZMF 927 293
2 to 3 years ME=F 35 =
380,509 278,238

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from

60 to 90 days.

126 SCUD GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2010

RTHEERNFHERIREAAN F60E90R -



18. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

18. EWEBE S RIEREREE #)

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FAREIRBENSEHNOT
year were as follows:
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREFIT
1 January —H—H 3,890 19,454
Impairment losses recognised BRI AR 1,072 39
Impairment losses reversed B #E R AR - (120)
Amounts written off during FRMEE AT A] Ug B & B8
the year as uncollectible (725) (15,483)
31 December +=-—A=+—8H 4,237 3,890

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are past

due but not impaired is as follows:

B HMB I ROR (B A B B 5 SR K R R IR B9

tRECDATANT

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Less than 6 months past due BEAT BN EA 36,925 53,030
Over 6 months past due BERSE A LA E 4,328 1,444
41,253 54,474
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18. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

19.

128

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and notes
receivables approximate their fair value.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

18. EWESRERERVEE #)

19.

380 BB 0 R ORY (B A B W IR KR A BB 0 0SB 3L
BEFMEEAEERRFOE - REBEAEL
B ARREERAE/EERABRARAEX
HE - MEKBTEAZEKE  MTHER/E
LERRBRETTRERE - AREX THIELHKIA
TEHERRE XM ERREHEE

EERARRUWE P F0R N R YR &K iR (E 82
HERFEHEE -

FNRIE ~ B RHEMEWKIE

Group

B
2010 2009
—B-%F s
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBET T

Advance to suppliers I L JE P A 3K 104,006 55,519
VAT recoverable AR EIEER 6,648 712

Deposits paid for acquisition of ~ BEWE - M= K&
property, plant and equipment MENES 123,325 53,761
Refundable deposits AR EiRE 1,269 392
Others Hth 2,051 4,013
237,299 114,397

Less: Allowance for bad and B RIBIREAE

doubtful debts (2,084) (2,671)
235,215 111,726
Current portion BPEAER (D 186,812 111,726
Non-current portion FEENERER D 48,403 =
235,215 111,726
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the

year were as follows:

19. AN RE - RERHtERFE

(%)
ERRBERBENEBNT

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARET T
1 January —H—H 2,671 6,284
Impairment losses recognised BRI ERE 530 20
Impairment losses reversed B E R EREE (991) (474)

Amounts written off during FREEEA A Y B & 58

the year as uncollectible (126) (3,159)
31 December +=—A=+—H 2,084 2,671

None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets included

in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no

recent history of default.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial

assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables

approximate their fair value.

A FEEWAREIE - A FAREPTBIEE BRI
PR TS E E M B E W EIE N R RCE o

EEZRRFTARNIEA - e M HE M EWRIA
M BEENRTEREAFERS
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20. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

21.

130

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have been
pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure general
banking facilities granted by the banks to the Group:

20.

EEEHA

RBERRGERE - ARECHATEEER
FIRIT - (ERBR —RBITEENER

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—ZT-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Motor vehicles RE 1,956 2,289
Bank deposits RITFR 96,976 90,911
Notes receivables e ZE 5% 18,315 =
117,247 93,200

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 2.75%
per annum for the year (2009: 2.25% per annum), and will be
released upon the settlement of the notes payable. The directors
consider that the carrying amount of the pledged bank deposits
approximates their fair value.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at
1.0% per annum (2009: 1.35% per annum). The directors consider
that the carrying amounts of bank balances and cash approximate
their fair value.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB") is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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RITEGREAE
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22. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

22. BN EEEALFRE

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free ENEEEATHEEEER  2ERER
and repayable on demand. TREFEE -
Details of the balance are as follows: EAFHBELT
Group
TEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR AREF T
Scud Stock FE BRAZ 17 3,360 =
Fujian Netcom REMER 768 =
4,128 =
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23. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

23. BENESRERENREE

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—F-FF —FFN5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
Trade payables FERTE 5 5/1A 110,307 59,261
Notes payables AN ES 215,330 139,516
325,637 198,777

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REZHZR  RNEENHEREENE SR

RENZRAREDOMIT

Group

AEME
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
0 to 60 days 0£60K 231,300 122,255
61 to 180 days 612180k 85,617 61,885
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 6,483 11,700
1 to 2 years —ZEZMF 1,461 2,790
2 to 3 years ME=4F 770 147
Over 3 years =FE 6 -
325,637 198,777

132

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for
trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and notes
payables approximate their fair value.
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24. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY

25.

24. EmRIEEEE

Group

REH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
1 January —H—H 4,166 3,683
Additions N - 483
Release B [al (268) =
31 December +=—A=+—H 3,898 4,166

The provision for warranty claims represents management’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under a half-year warranty program
granted on the own-brand name battery, based on prior experience
and industry averages for defective products.

OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

EmREREEFSHEELERBBELR R
ERNREFHHE  piAKERKNE A @S
BoF FREF N ABEELNREMR

25. Hib B FRE » MUFIE R ES

AND ACCRUED CHARGES gH
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Deposits from customers BEEE 16,167 7,964
Payroll and welfare payables JEE A1 525 BN % A ) 13,674 8,342
Accrued expenses FEETRX 2,086 11,582
Payables for acquisition of BEWXE  WENKEE
property, plant and equipment FET5RIA 6,556 1,386
Other taxes payable E b RIE 5,598 1,413
Withholding tax liability RHHIEEE 1,250 =
Others Hh 15,978 13,272
61,309 43,959

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial liabilities

included in other payables, receipts in advance and accrued charges

approximates their fair value.

EERBRFTAEMBNTIE « WAL BT
ERNMBRENRTEREAFERS
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26. BANK LOANS 26. SRITER

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Secured bank loans EHEARITER 74 518
Unsecured bank loans EINFIRTTER 86,357 10,000
86,431 10,518

The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: RITEFERFHNOT -

Group

TEE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Within 1 year or on demand —FAFIREK 37,961 10,444
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA - 74
After 2 year but within 5 years MEREBERFA 48,470 =
Over 5 years g Ak - -

48,470 74

86,431 10,518
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26. BANK LOANS (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, bank loans of approximately RMB74,000
(2009: RMB518,000) were secured by the Group’s motor vehicles
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB1,956,000 (2009:
RMB2,289,000) (see also note 20 above). There were no other
borrowings other than bank loans as at 31 December 2010 and
31 December 2009.

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s director and controlling
shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, has guaranteed certain bank loans
made to the subsidiaries of the Group of up to an amount of
RMB53,470,000.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are also equal
to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings
are as follows:

26. 8 RITER )

RZE—ZTE+-_A=+—8 ABHARK
74,000L( ZZEZNF : AR¥518,0007T)H
RITERAARNEEIRAEEL AR 1,956,00070
—TTHE : ARE?2,289,0007T)H)TENES
AR (B IR2H E X aE20) - A-T—ZFF+
—A=Et+—BEk=_ZFEEAF+=_A=+—8"
BRIBITEFIMEEEMER -

R_E—ZTF+_A=+—H ' KRAaNES
FEBRRE A EREANEENEQRRME
S HRSEARKS3,470,000tHE TRITE
FRIEHEIR ©

ZIKE B ERNFEERFE(TFHER GO
)T

Group
rEH
2010 2009
—g-2%  —TThA
Average effective BfERZ
interest rate on ?ﬁaﬁﬁ?ﬂ%
fixed-rate borrowings 5.22% 5.31%

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the bank loans
approximate their fair value.

EERA/RITIEENREEREAFERS -

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. A
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each Amount
in Thousands RMB’'000
FR0.10%8 T
ZERBRE ot |
F Bz AR¥T T
Authorised: VAR ¢
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 R-ZEEAER_FE—ZEF+_A=+—H 5,000,000 502,530
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE :
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZTNF—H—H 1,022,001 102,134
Issue of shares for acquisition U iE — I B A AIFTEE 7T
of a subsidiary Colibgn) 10,000 880
At 31 December 2009 RZZETNF+=-A=+—8H 1,032,001 103,014
At 31 December 2010 RZE—FTF+-_A=+—H 1,032,001 103,014
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

136

On 20 April 2010, Scud Electronics, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a Capital Injection Agreement with Shenzhen
Ruide Electronic Industrial Co., Ltd. (“RuiDe Electronics”), Hua Wei,
Liu Bai, Ji Fulin and Zhang Wei (together the “Vendors”) pursuant
to which Scud Electronics agreed to pay a total consideration of
RMB50,000,000 whereby upon completion of the Capital Injection
Agreement, Shenzhen Hongde became an indirect subsidiary of
the Company and Shenzhen Hongde is ultimately owned by Scud
Electronics as to 70%, RuiDe Electronics as to 6%, Hua Wei as
to 13%, Liu Bai as to 5%, Ji Fulin as to 3% and Zhang Wei as
to 3%.

Pursuant to the terms of the Capital Injection Agreement, the total
consideration payable by Scud Electronics is RMB50,000,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2010, RMB35,000,000 have been
injected into Shenzhen Hongde as contributions to its registered
capital whilst the remaining RMB15,000,000 have been recorded
by Shenzhen Hongde as capital surplus.

Pursuant to the terms of the Capital Injection Agreement, it was
agreed that Shenzhen Hongde shall distribute dividends on an
annual basis which shall not be less than 30% of the relevant
year's profits after tax. Further it was agreed that the Vendors
shall be entitled to the undistributed profits of Shenzhen Hongde
in the form of dividends which amount to RMB6,000,000 for the
period up to 31 December 2009, whilst the remaining undistributed
profits shall be for the benefit of the equity holders pro-rata of
their equity interests in Shenzhen Hongde post capital injection.
Scud Electronics shall also be entitled to appoint over 70% of the
board of directors of Shenzhen Hongde and shall have the right
to appoint the president and vice-president of Shenzhen Hongde.
The total consideration under the Capital Injection Agreement
was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between the parties
based on the net asset value of Shenzhen Hongde as at 31 March
2010 of approximately RMB29,668,000 as stated in the unaudited
management accounts of Shenzhen Hongde.
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The purpose of the Group’s investment in Shenzhen Hongde is
to coordinate with the upstream bare battery cells manufacturing
business of the Group and Shenzhen Hongde is one of the leaders
in high-end bare battery cells in terms of research and development
capabilities, leveraging on its professional and experienced research
and development team, advanced production and inspection
facilities, and strict quality assurance system. Shenzhen Hongde
will enable the Group to enhance its research and development
capabilities in the Group’s core technologies, and further stabilize
the upstream supply, maintain cost control, improve profit margin
and enhance core competitiveness. Besides, as Shenzhen Hongde
is primarily engaged in research and development, production and
sale of high-end lithiumion bare battery cells, the investment in
Shenzhen Hongde will allow the Group to apply such expertise
on its rechargeable battery products with varying qualities in its
future bare battery cells supply, contributing to the enhancement
of “SCUDFRERR"” brand’s unique competitive strengths in the
rechargeable batteries industry in China.
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

138

28. WiE —EM B AR (@)

20 April 2010
—EB-ZF
mA=+H
Fair Value
AFE
RMB’000
AREFT
The assets and liabilities recognised AW EEIRERANEE
as a result of the acquisition are RagEmr :
as follows:
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RERE 18,087
Intangible assets mEEE 81
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 I B Ath5k18 22,977
Inventories 8 53,283
Trade and other payables FETE 5 K EAth5RIE (63,102)
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRNIES 52,725
Short-term bank loans REERRITE R (6,500)
Non-controlling interest, based on FEAEHIMERE R - TR
their proportionate interest in the WETEBREER
recognised amounts of the asset BENERLLOIGE
and liabilities of the acquiree (23,265)
Net identifiable assets acquired BRI ERFEE 54,286
Gain on bargain purchase arising U B P/ A DAMB B (B4R
from acquisition BE MW (4,286)
Total consideration BRE 50,000
Total consideration satisfied by cash: BRREUARSEN :
Contribution to registered capital IRV IBIEFME AR
of Shenzhen Hongde & 35,000
Consideration paid credited to capital ERREBRARYIBE
reserve of Shenzhen Hongde HERRTE 15,000
50,000
Net cash inflow arising from AWEEEEENES
acquisition: MAJRE
Bank balances and cash acquired EWBRITEBREIES 52,725
Cash consideration paid BEBEERE (50,000)
2,725
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The excess of the fair value of attributable net assets acquired over
the cost of acquisition of RMB4,286,000 (i.e. negative goodwill) was
recognised as other revenue in the Group’s consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2010. The Directors
considered the negative goodwill was resulted from a bargain
purchase.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of approximately
RMB1,000,000 relating to external legal fees. The legal fees have
been included in administrative expenses in the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The fair value of trade and other receivables is approximately
RMB22,977,000 and includes trade receivables with a fair value of
approximately RMB21,208,000. The gross contractual amount for
trade receivables due is approximately RMB21,208,000, of which
none of them is expected to be uncollectible.

Shenzhen Hongde contributed revenue of approximately
RMB143,577,000 and net profit of approximately RMB12,923,000
to the Group for the period from 20 April 2010 to 31 December
2010. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2010, contributed
revenue and net profit to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 would have been approximately RMB180,439,000 and
approximately RMB16,575,000 respectively.

28. W iE — M B AR (@)
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

140

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 3 December 2006 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years and the Company
by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of directors
of the Company may at anytime terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and
which remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination.

At 31 December 2010, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was Nil (2009: 9,388,000, representing 0.9% of the shares
of the Company in issue at that time). The total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of share issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director
or any of their respective associates representing in aggregate over
0.1% the Company'’s share capital on the date of such grant or with
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders (voting
by way of poll). The options had a weighted average remaining
life of one year.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on the grant of an option.

Options are vested in the following manner:

Period of exercise of the relevant percentage of option

TRBRERREE DL 2 MR

/I

29. LR AEBR 2 HRKRZ (#)

REVETERE L BRER N - BEELT
ST B

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATEBREZESEOL

From the expiry of the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the second anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B E AR —BFRE i AR mmE S
Z & EBIF(BEEERX)

From the expiry of the second anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the third anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B MR MBFERE Fh B AR =B
ZEEBHIE(BEERERX)

From the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the fourth anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

i B EE AR = AR E T B B m B E
Z & BBIF(BEERERX)

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company

was fixed at HK$2.02 per share.

As at 31 December 2010, all options granted under the pre-IPO

share option scheme have expired.

30% of the total number of options granted

ERLBREEE230%

30% of the total number of options granted

ERHERERE230%

40% of the total number of options granted

ERLBREEE240%

TERERARAESTET MABEEZTEESE
f%2.028 7T °

RZE-—ZF+-_A=+—H BEEFAREE
AR B M P B B E 21 -
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 29. ARG AEMZNARRZ (&)
(Continued)

EXkEERFAMBEREEZZHNT

Movements of the share options held by directors and employees
during the year were as follows:

142

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTNF
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding outstanding
e RATBE B AT
BREHAR HBARER R
Directors =3
1 January —H—H 6,200,000 10,710,000
Reclassify from REANEEERAEF SR
employees category
during the year 80,000 140,000
Expired during the year RERE)E (6,280,000) (4,650,000)
31 December +ZA=+—H - 6,200,000
Group
REME
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZENEF
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding outstanding
8 RATBE 8 AT
BREHE i SR
Employees &8
1 January —H—H 3,188,000 5,719,000
Reclassify to RERNEFHEEEEHT
directors category
during the year (80,000) (140,000)
Expired during the year REREH] (3,108,000) (2,391,000)
31 December +=—A=+—H - 3,188,000
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Mr. Lin Chao resigned as a director of the Company on 30 December
2009. Mr. Lin was interested in 1,600,000 shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Scheme as at 31 December 2009, representing approximately
0.16% of the issued capital. As at 31 December 2010, all options
granted to Mr. Lin under the Scheme have expired.

Options were granted on 21 December 2006 and the estimated fair
value of the options granted was approximately HK$11,713,000
(equivalent to RMB11,768,000). The Black-Scholes pricing model
has been used to estimate the fair value of the share options. The
following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of the
share options:

/I

29. AR AEBR 2{ARKRZ (#)

MBEERZTENF+T_A=THHFEEERA
RIEE - MEERBEBRESZCDEEMR
—ETAFT A=+ —BHARITERRER
1,600,000 %M HEE #2 - HEREBITIRA
#90.16% - RZZE—ZTF+=ZA=+—8 ' 1R
BB TR EENARBRES I

BRECKR-ZZERNFI_A=+—BELH
P B I 2 (st A (A4 A11,713,0008
T(HEERARK11,768,0007T) ° W AFETY
BN —FRNTHECEEAGE - LT/
FARGTEEREATE

21 December 2006
—EERFFT=A=1—H

Weighted average share price INFEF I AME
Exercise price TE(E
Expected life Bt
Expected volatility TEET R R
Expected dividend yield IR e
Risk-free interest rate: A2 o5 e ) =
Option A EAREA
Option B AL EB
Option C AR EC

The fair value of the share options granted was HK$0.3716 per
share. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has
been adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the
effects of non-transferability, restrictions to exercise (including the
probability of meeting market conditions attached to the options),
and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility is based on the
current average annualised standard deviations of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the share prices of other comparable
with similar business operations listed in the Stock Exchange.

No share options expense in relation to share options granted under
the Scheme has been recognised by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: RMB1,455,000).

HK$2.88/8 7T
HK$2.02/8 7T
1.5-3.5 yearstF
38.15%
2.54%

3.58%
3.61%
3.69%

REERE 2 A TERFTR0.3716%TT © 1A4E
BE ZERAFEANEFHEREERE
FATTERENE - TERS(BREERERTHS
TR BFEEN) RITAZEREZNFZEEDLH
BEMGF T FATE o KB TR B R B
FrEmz B EEFEG 2 Kt & LERG 2
REBEEAFREEXEMs PHFESEZRE
E o

HE_Z2-EFE+_A=1+—"RHIEEHER
BRZTE T REERERZAI(ZZEZ A
F : AR¥1,455,0007T) °

—E-TEER REBEEERLF 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE - Z—ZTH&+_-HA=+—HILFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

144

30. FEEALR S

The name of and the relationship with related companies are a) ABREQFBBMEABERNT

as follows:

Name Relationship

=L A&

Fang Jin Director and controlling shareholder of the Company

ik EERARAZERARE

Guo Quan Zeng Director

RIE 5=

Lin Chao Substantial shareholder of the Company

M ARG FERR

Scud Electronics Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly

REBRET held by the Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director
REMGER)EFARRA - FerERIXAEENARAHEER2E

) SPNG|
Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin and
FRERRAR D Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors who have shareholding

Chaolitong Electronic
BB EF

Chaolitong Technology
R

Scud Shenzhen
RN ERR

Fujian Netcom

R
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interest in this company as to 67% and 3%, respectively.
Mr. Lin Chao has 25% shareholding interest in Scud Stock

RERERBROERAR - FolERBRIGEESHRAETEFNAT -
W7 BIHEE % A F67 % K3 %A HE © MBS A A REBRAX(D 25 % ik

Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited, Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng Wei
are directors and shareholders of both Chaolitong Electronic and
Chaolitong Technology

BIBEFARAT - BARLERBELEEFEREFRBIBERR
BE = RAR

Chaolitong Technology Company Limited, a 70% owned subsidiary
indirectly held by the Company with Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng Wei
being directors of both Chaolitong Electronic and Chaolitong Technology

RYTHEDBREARAR - ERTERBEREERBNBEF LB
BREHARERNARRAREER70%HH B A A

Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly
held by the Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director

REMEFORINDARRA - FerERFXAEENARAHEER2E
) SPNG|

Fujian Netcom Technology Co., Ltd., a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Fang Dong, the brother of Mr. Fang Jin

BEEASEER AR - AREERERENAT - MEKSFTREED
CE



30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b)  Transactions with related companies during the year not

30 EEREA TR Z 2)
b) WEAMEHRELMBDRBEHENGE

disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are summarised EBARRSBAMAT
as follows:
Group
REH
2010 2009
—B-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Rental expenses paid to: Hem% :
— Scud Stock (Note i) —FRERRA (B =R 4,078 4,078
— Chaolitong Electronic — BB E T (M)
(Note ii) 3,600 3,600
Sales to Fujian Netcom miE AL 2 sH 6 (Y EEii)
(Note iii) 4,273 -

The above transactions were made at prices and terms as agreed

between the parties in the normal course of business.

Notes:

i)

The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated
11 December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered
into a lease agreement with Scud Stock on 20 June
2004 (the “Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which Scud
Electronics had agreed to lease from Scud Stock certain
factory premises in Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC,
for the Group’s production use for a term of three years
commencing 1 July 2004 and ending on 30 June 2007
(the “Lease Agreement”). The Lease Agreement was
later extended to 30 June 2024.

The annual rental payable under the Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
set its initial annual caps for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2008 to be RMB2,700,000 each.

On 15 November 2007, Scud Electronics entered into
a new lease agreement for leasing another premises in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC, from Scud Stock for
the Group’s administrative use for a term of 3 years (the
“New Lease Agreement”).

ERR BTN —REFEEFREES
1 TE RO BAR I R TT

GEX

i) ARARERBHAE-—ZTEF+_A
T—HOBREERFHEE  RERE
FERZEENFNA-+HERE
BREEGHEI SR ((HERE])
B REREFE R ERRERRG
HERTEBEEARMNAE T IEY
XEREBEERSE  A-TTNE
tA—BRBRE_ZTZtFA=1H
IEAB=F([HERBZ] - HEHH
E&ﬁ@ifyfmiﬂﬂ +E°

HERZBETNSFREMNESER
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HFF LR AARKE2,700,0007T °
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b) (Continued)

146

Notes: (Continued)

i)

ii)

(Continued)

The annual caps have been revised following the signing
of the New Lease Agreement. The new annual caps
for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Electronics to
Scud Stock under all the leases for the years ended 31
December 2007, 2008 and 2009 have been determined
to be RMB3,000,000, RMB4,100,000 and RMB4,100,000,
respectively.

On 8 January 2010, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “Renewal
Agreement”) and agreed to terminate the New Lease
Agreement with effect from 1 January 2010. The terms
of the lease under the Renewal Agreement is the same as
that set out in the New Lease Agreement and is effective
commencing from 1 January 2010 and its tenure ending
on 31 December 2012. Further details of the Renewal
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 8 January 2010.

The new annual caps for the aggregate rental payable
by Scud Electronics to Scud Stock under all the leases
for each of the years ending 31 December 2010, 2011
and 2012 have been determined to be RMB4,100,000
each.

The rent payable under the Lease Agreement, the New
Lease Agreement and the Renewal Agreement were
determined after arms’ length negotiations between
Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with reference to the
prevailing market rental for the comparable premises.

On 17 January 2008, Chaolitong Electronic and Chaolitong
Technology entered into a lease agreement (“CLT Lease
Agreement”) whereby Chaolitong Technology will lease
the factory and dormitory premises from Chaolitong
Electronic in Shenzhen. The Vendor is a connected
person of the Company by way of its 30% interest in
the Purchaser. As of 2 June 2008 whereby the Company
receives all relevant approvals required from Chinese
regulators in relation to the acquisition of Chaolitong
Technology, Chaolitong Technology became an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the
CLT Lease Agreement therefore constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(Continued)

b)

Q

d)

Notes: (Continued)

ii)

iii)

iv)

(Continued)

The annual caps with respect to the rental payable by
Chaolitong Technology for the years ended 31 December
2008, 2009 and 2010 have been determined to be
RMB3,600,000 per annum.

Further details of the CLT Lease Agreement are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17 January 2008.

On 14 May 2010, 21 June 2010 and 15 July 2010,
Scud Shenzhen entered into the 3 sale and purchase
agreements (together “Sale and Purchase Agreements”)
respectively, with Fujian Netcom. Fujian Netcom is
therefore an associated (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of Mr. Fang Jin. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreements, Scud Shenzhen agreed to sell and Fujian
Netcom agreed to purchase various types of batteries
for a total consideration of RMB4,999,225 (inclusive
of the PRC value added tax) payable after receipt of
the batteries. Further details of the Sale and Purchase
Agreements are set out in the Company's announcement
dated 14 March 2011.

The directors of the Company have confirmed that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the continuing connected transactions and connected
transaction stated in Notes i), ii) and iii) above.

Other transaction with related party:

As at 31 December 2010, Mr. Fang Jin, has guaranteed certain
bank loans made to the subsidiaries of the Group of up to an
amount of RMB53,470,000.

Remuneration for key management personnel,

including

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 8, is as follows:

30 BEAEALR S @)

b)

Q

d)

(&)
Pt : (48)
iy (#&)

BHABRBEREE_ZZNFE - =5
ThER-_ZT—ZTF+_A=+—H
EREFERMNEASNFE LREK
BEATF ARE3,600,0007T °

tﬂﬁfﬂiﬁﬁ% ZEMF BTN A
{;ﬁﬁf‘_g’gﬂi B+t B TEm
N

iy R—ZE—TFRA+HTAH-
EAH —_THAR-F— Eitﬂ+
AA - RYREREREMA
izﬁﬁgm%%MWa%EE%
#) o Eitt - BEWAASTSREN
%%A&i%ﬁtmﬁmn BRIEEE
i - RIITRERRE ﬁ%ﬁ@E%
AMEE %Eﬁﬁ%ﬂ BREAAR
#4,999,2257C( & IHE%)%) "R
Wm B SthiA R o BB BB E s
EHRARFBHAE-_T——F=A
+mam@%mo

*H

|
¢_|

v) ARFEEER ARREETEX
By EED - i) Miii) Pk _E AR B 14AE
f%@%%%ﬁ@i%&%ﬁ@i%ﬂ@ﬁ@
fE °

HAREATHEMR

T—TE+-A=+—H Fek4E
ASEHBARRHESERSEAR
470,000

00T WY & THR1T ,\/TM’EHW‘

=
53,

N
w
%
R
3E
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Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARBFIT
Salaries, bonus, allowance — & - #4284
and other benefits N H b A& R 1,090 1,164
Retirement benefits scheme RUKEFIFTHEIHE 5K
contributions 20 16
Equity-settled share-based  MRAN&EE 2 AR &
payments B2 R - 961
1,110 2,141

SEBRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z—ZF—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFF

31. 7RI
a) EREE

31. COMMITMENTS

a) Capital commitments

Group
rEH
2010 2009
—B-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Contracted but not EREEYE
accounted for, in respect 5 K&
of acquisition of property,  #J{ER AR
plant and equipment 72,591 172,746
b) Operating lease commitments b) REBRIAIE

R E HRERE - REBERET A HEH
REHLB L i RABF Y 8 R AR ASE
RIAT AR 2IE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

148

Group

rEEH
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Within one year —FKN 8,669 6,408

In the second and MERF(BERFERIEEAN)

fifth years inclusive 15,301 1,543
More than 5 years BBRAF 12,368 -
36,338 7,951

None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group

does not have an option to purchase the leased land and

buildings at the expiry of the lease periods.
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32.

33.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company includes a profit of approximately RMB23,205,000
(2009: loss of approximately RMB2,530,000), which has been dealt

32. AR A EmFE ARERR

ARBIEEFEABERAFERES N BER
R# A R#¥23,205,0007C( — BT NEF : BHIEY
AR¥2,530,0007T) © TIERAR R ERE

with in the financial statements of the Company. hEIE o
SUBSIDIARIES 33. B A FE]
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the RFEHBERERRRMBERRFEAT °
reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary BRIESTTHA - FHENRMDERN LR
unless otherwise stated:
Group'’s
Place of Issued and effective
incorporation/ paid-up ownership
establishment share/ interest
and registered AEEER Principal
Name of company operation capital BEER activities
AR K ERTRES 2010 2009
AT ERE FEE—$:ih BRRA —B-BF —"TITNF FEEK
Great Speed Enterprises British Virgin Us$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands 50,0003 T wEER
BATEARAT] RERLES
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100% * Provision for
Company Limited B 1787T corporate
REREE(HE) management
BRAT] services
REAFEEIRSE
Keen Power Holdings Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited B 1,000/ 7T HEER
fHEEEE AR AT
Joint Smart Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 70%* 70%* Investment holding
Limited B 10,0007 7T HEER
Bt e R EHR A A

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises
Limited

* BERRACEERAREESAER

=

ZEFH REREBERDA
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE —Z—ZH&+_-HA=+—HILF/E

33. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. B E @)
Group's

Place of Issued and effective

incorporation/ paid-up ownership

establishment share/ interest

and registered EEEEN Principal
Name of company operation capital HEERERE activities

AR R BERITRES 2010 2009
AR ERE R i B BB —E-2F —TThF FEXEK
Scud Electronics PRC US$3,000,000 100%* 100%* Manufacturing

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. A 3,000,000 T and sale of

RERET ORI rechargeable

BR A battery packs, chargers

(Note i) and related accessories

GED for mobile phones,
digital cameras
and other electrical
appliances

B K SHE R AR B S
B iE - B & E A
EfEMNZARTE
B AR
Scud (Fujian) Electronics PRC US$27,000,000 100%* 100%* Manufacturing and sale
Co., Ltd. e 27,000,0003 7T of rechargeable battery
RERER)ET packs, chargers and

BRAA related accessories for

(Note ii) mobile phones,

(B i) notebook computers,
digital cameras and other
electrical appliances
REBEFE LR
B - SRR R H A
EFEMNZARAESE
M - TER K
B AR

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises Limited * FEARACEERAREERSGER
#  Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings Limited # BRHEEEFRARIMEERGER
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33. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

33. B A= (&

Group'’s
Place of Issued and effective
incorporation/ paid-up ownership
establishment share/ interest
and registered EEEEN Principal
Name of company operation capital EE#ER activities
AR R ERTRES 2010 2009
AEER BB BREBRAE —B-2F "ZTTNF FEXK
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%* Manufacturing and sale
REMRE M AR A A A 30,000,000 7T of rechargeable
(Note iii) battery packs, chargers
(B i) and related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook computers,
digital cameras and
other electrical appliances
FLENHERAR
BT - FAEM
ZSIER R A E T Em
W ZRFTEEMAE
B A MR
Shenzhen Hongde PRC RMB50,000,000 70%Y - Research and development,
Battery Co. Ltd. H AREE manufacturing and sale
RYITIBIREN 50,000,0007C of lithium
BRAT] bare battery cells
(Note iv) SBEMZIE AER
(B 3Eiv) SHE
Scud (Guangzhou) PRC RMB3,200,000 51%Y - Research and development,
Digital Technology e AR manufacturing and sales
Co. Ltd. 3,200,0007T of bluetooth earphones
& N 77 = FR A L and other digital
BRAT] telecommunication
(Note v) appliances
(V) EFER - B RAE
BM R FEREE
#  Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings Limited o EBHEEEERAREERAER

v Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Ltd.

v BBRER(ER)ETARAFRBERSR

fEn

T -TFFR

REBREEFRAQA] 151
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—F—F#+-A=+—HILFZ

33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. ff B2 & s
Group'’s
Place of Issued and effective
incorporation/ paid-up ownership
establishment share/ interest
and registered EEEEN Principal
Name of company operation capital EEER activities
FEf AL R BERTRES 2010 2009
AR BB s ih B G N —E-ZTF —TTNF FTEEK
Scud (Beijing) Electronics  PRC RMB1,000,000 40%Y - Not yet commenced
Co. Ltd. A ARHE business
REBRUER)EF 1,000,0007C RENGECEE
BRAHE
(Note vi)
(Bt 5Evi)
Fujian Chaolitong Battery PRC RMB5,000,000 100%Y - Not yet commenced
Co. Ltd. A AR business
REBNRE) 5,000,0007T EENGEEEE
BRAT]
(Note vii)
(Ff L vii)
Scud (Fujian) New Energy PRC Us$750,000 N/A 100%* Deregistered
Technology Co., Ltd. H 750,000% 7T TiE A 28
RERR(FBE)
FraEREAM AR A A
(Note viii)
(B 5Eviii)
Great Power Enterprises ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%* Not yet commenced
Limited B 1,000%7C business
SAEREER AT RN

Y Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Ltd.

# Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings
Limited.

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises
Limited
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33. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

33.fiB A= (&

)
/

Group's
Place of Issued and effective
incorporation/ paid-up ownership
establishment share/ interest
and registered EEEEY Principal
Name of company operation capital HEERERE activities
AR AR R ERITRESH 2010 2009
AT ERE R it B BB —E-2F —TThF FEEK
Chaolitong Technology PRC RMB37,000,000 70%4 70%4 Manufacturing
Company Limited A AREE and sale of
FYITRE S R 37,000,0007T rechargeable
BRAT] battery packs,
(Note ix) chargers and
(P &Eix) related accessories
for mobile phones,
digital cameras and
other electrical
appliances
SLEMIHERANEE)
B SUEAR K&
HE
ERMNZXARZEE
A - FERK
| BB
Patriots Group Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% * 100%* Not yet
(China) Company BB 10,000/ 7T commenced
Limted business
EEESE(RE) CENGEEE
BRAT]
Patriots (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%* Not yet
Power Sources a5 10,000/ 7T commenced
Company Limted business
FEE(EB) CENGE S
BEIRBR A A

A Interest indirectly held through Joint Smart Holdings Limited A FABEEEAERAFEERGER

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises Limited * EBERNEAR AT aES
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33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

154

i)

iii)

iv)

vi)

vii)

viii)

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 26 October 2006.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 31 October 1997.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 6 December 2005.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years commencing
21 January 2005.

Limited liability company for a term of 10 years commencing
23 July 2010.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years commencing
3 August 2010. The Directors considered that the Group had
control of the majority of the board composition of Scud
Beijing and the investment in Scud Beijing is treated as a
subsidiary of the Company.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years commencing
21 October 2010.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 30 April 2007 and subsequently deregistered on
24 June 2010.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 10 years
commencing 2 June 2008.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

34. BB 2T A

R EBRARE - ZEHIS KT ANREE
W

Group
TEE
2010 2009
—E-EF TN
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BRREWRE ERRERKIEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT T
Financial assets MREE
Due from related parties FEURE B A\ T 5K0E 5,888 2,335
Trade and notes receivables FEWE 5 5/ 18 R B E & 380,509 278,238
Financial assets included in TEfFRIA - Re REA
prepayments, deposits and JEWGRIBFT 815
other receivables KB 5 & B 9,888 4,848
Pledged bank deposits B ARITFR 96,976 90,911
Bank balances and cash RITHBREIRE 317,234 390,884
810,495 767,216
Group
rEE
2010 2009
- —ZETNF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised costs amortised costs
REBHERAAR  REHAAR AR
ek aE BB E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARET T
Financial liabilities BEaE
Due to related parties JERTBRAE A +5/IA 4,128 =
Trade and notes payables FERTE 558 RERN R& 325,637 198,777
Financial liabilities included in EfthfEfTFRIE - TRUGRIE R
other payables, receipts in FEETE R BIEN
advance and accrued charges s aE 45,142 35,995
Bank loans IRITE K 86,431 10,518
461,338 245,290
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35. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

156

AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES

a) Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
which include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The directors manage and monitor these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

i) Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged bank
deposits and bank balances which are all short-term in
nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-bearing
financial liabilities are mainly bank loans with fixed
interest rates; therefore, the Group is not exposed to
significant fair value interest rate risk due to the short
maturity of the items. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy and will consider enter
into interest rate hedging should the need arise.
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35. FINANCIALRISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

i)

iii)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the and if the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments
in existence at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 December 2010 and the accumulated
profits as of 31 December 2010 would decrease/ increase
by approximately RMB2,794,386 (2009: decrease/
increase by approximately RMB4,291,485). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank and cash balance and pledged
bank deposit.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed
significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Although
the Group has certain bank balances and bank loans
denominated in United States dollars, Japanese Yen
and Hong Kong dollars, the proportion of these
foreign currency balances to the Group’s total assets is
insignificant. Furthermore, the Group carries out majority
of its transactions in Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in
the opinion of the directors, the Group is not exposed
to any significant foreign currency risk.

Price risk management

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have
significant exposure to price risk.

. EEAREREAEER MGG A
F{E®)

)

i)

iii)

FIE R EE (4
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U T RRESHTE BRAERHE
3254 AR RO B A TR A
FE AR B B R R S T B2
FIRER - RAEEEERAHERR
R\ B PO 2 3R 45 B 05 P 1 %38 MR,
DEE BB TR T AR ET 25T
fif o

fis K R 38 00,59 A1 % T BT 5 H Ath
HUHRFTE  AEEHE-T—TF
+ZA=+—HALEFENFRRZ
T—THFE+ - A=+—HHEDER
#E D N AR #2,794,3867T
(Z2TNF - \mP MO ARE
4,291,4857C) - WHEBRBEAEH
FEMITERSEHRREEPRITE
KA T = 2 B o

2445 B ) S UK R 4 AR A A
EPS TR
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SN [\ B FE SIS T R D i R B AR
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35. FINANCIALRISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

158

iv) Credit risk management

v)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk primarily
relates to the Group's bank balances and cash, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at end
of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the risk, management of the Group closely
monitors overdue debts. The recoverable amount of
each individual debt is reviewed at each of the reporting
period and adequate allowance for doubtful debts has
been made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that credit risk
associated with the Group’s trade and notes receivables,
and other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
has a certain level of concentration of credit risk as
approximately 5.4% (2009: 6.0%) and approximately
18.6% (2009: 31.4%) of the total trade and notes
receivables, arising from the Company’s largest customer
and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC.

Liquidity risk management

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the management of the Group’s short, medium and long
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.
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35. FINANCIALRISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

a) Financial risk management (Continued)

v) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
31 December 2010 and 2009, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:—

Bb.HMBEBRELAERER M A
PR )
a) HMERREE(E)

v) REMEEREE(E)
RZBE-—ZEER_ZZNFT A=
+—8B  AEEMIBABEREET
HARAIVFIEN D EERAT - —

2010
—B-%%
Total Total
On Less than 6 months to undiscounted carrying
demand 6 months 1 year 1-3years  cash flows amount
REBR
REX ~MERR AERE-F —E2ZF  RENAE EEAE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRE ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARMTT AR%TR
Due to related parties EREREATFE 4,128 - - - 4,128 4,128
Trade and notes payables EREHHERENRE 110,307 215,330 - - 325,637 325,637
Financial liabilities included in other STAEMEAFE -
payables, receipts in advance FMGRIE RS
and accrued charges ERNEBER 10,369 34,773 - - 45,142 45,142
Bank loans BITER - 5,215 33,942 58,736 97,893 86,431
124,804 255,318 33,942 58,736 472,800 461,338
2009
—ZTNE
Total Total
On Less than 6 months to undiscounted carrying
demand 6 months 1 year 1-3 years cash flows amount
AR
REX ~NEAR  A~ERE—F -2 RengE EmesE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000
ARBTT  ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade and notes payables VG ES - 198,777 - - 198,777 198,777
Financial liabilities included in other G AEABREFTFUA «
payables, receipts in advance TR R Rt
and accrued charges BRNMBAR - 35,995 - - 35,995 35,995
Bank loans BITER - 236 10,452 75 10,763 10,518
- 235,008 10,452 75 245,535 245,290
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35. FINANCIALRISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

160

b)

Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company and the non-controlling interests. The
gearing ratios as at the year end dates were as follows:
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35. FINANCIALRISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

b) Management of capital (Continued)

. EEAREREAEER A A
YE )

b) BEXEE(E)

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-%F “ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBT T

Interest-bearing bank borrowings  Hf BiR{TE 86,431 10,518
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & KBS FEY (317,234) (390,884)
Net debt FRE (230,803) (380,366)
Equity attributable to equity RRATIRAEFEE A

holders of the Company FEAG A% AR 1,179,646 1,156,194
Non-controlling interests FEFE I M AR 106,867 81,938
Total capital FEEEWIN 1,286,513 1,238,132
Capital and net debt BARRFAE 1,055,710 857,766
Gearing ratio BEAGBHE N/ATEH N/AZ i3 A

¢) Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with
a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate
their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of these
balances cannot be reasonably determined because of the
relationship.

O AT
FHLN—EOMBAERRENLAS
BBRBRATEES -

BN EREA T EBRNBHR SR
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36. RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 36.iHi€stRBBHRELSE
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

162

The Group has not adopted earlier or applied the following AREEWEIBEHMNKER T REE_Z—
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not TE+_A=+—BHLFEHRERZIELT
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2010:- N FTERIRERE : —

Effective for
annual reporting periods
beginning on or after

RUT BBz &K
FERGHEER
IAS 12 Amendment Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
BRR & Rt AERIZE 125% (1B FTA) RAERIA: WEIHEEEE —E——_%—H—H
IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
R RS 2455 (KFIEET) BT R R —E——%—H—H
IAS 32 Amendment Classification of Rights Issues 1 February 2010
R R 3258 (BETAN) DEHAR —E-TF_HA—H
IFRS 1 Amendment Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 1 July 2010
[ % B s o 5 2E A 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters —T-FF+H—H
EAEACCHES) BRERANE SRR B S S BRI 7R L R IR B 2 AR R
IFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets 1 July 2011
BIRR P s RN 75R (BT A) RE-—ERSMEE —E——%+H—H
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
I 5% Bt 765 S 5 AE R 22 9557 SRMIA —E—=F—-H—H
IFRIC 14 Amendment Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 1 January 2011
B EREEE S BANREESHR —=2——%—H—H
1458 (1BRT &)
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments 1 July 2010
BRI EREEZE®E19% MURATABHCHER —E-ZTF+HA—H
Improvements to IFRSs 2010 Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2010 1 July 2010 or
H_T-TEEREN SRS T —TEHM < BRI S 2RI 2 Bt 1 January 2011
Pl g —E-TFLA—H
—E——%—H—H
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RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related
impact of adopting the above new standards, amendments/
revisions/improvements to standards and interpretations in the
period of initial application. So far, it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2010, the directors consider the ultimate controlling
party to be Mr. Fang Jin.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 March 2011, an earthquake and tsunami struck Tohoku,
Japan. At the date of these financial statements, the Directors are
still making enquiries of certain suppliers of the Group in Japan
as to if and to what extent supply of products to the Group will
be affected. In the opinion of the Directors, an estimate of the
financial effect on the Group’s results for the next financial year
cannot be made until specific information on any disruption of
supply of products is obtained.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As a result of the adoption of “Improvements to IFRSs 2009 — 1AS 17
Leases” as disclosed in note 3 b), certain prior year adjustments have
been made and certain comparative amounts have been restated
to conform with the current year's presentation and accounting
treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

CONSOLIDATED

for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 24 March
2011.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBREE

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared under

International Financial Reporting Standards:

Year ended 31st December,

BZE+-A=+t—HLEE

T EMBERRBRAARE 2 KA MBRE -
ZEFHRERDREEREAHEREEN R

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF —TTNF ZTTN\F ZTTtLHF ZTTRF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RESULTS £
Turnover BEH 1,527,445 1,264,869 1,252,693 960,921 936,305
Profit before taxation BRAE A& A 68,200 54,914 142,357 15,946 174,902
Taxation HiIE (16,038) (8,996) (72) (429)  (14,711)
Profit for the year REZ A 52,162 45918 142,285 15,517 160,191
Attributable to: THIALE
Equity holders of the Company RREERFAAN 54,350 46,837 131,954 15,513 160,191
Non-controlling interests FEPE M RS (2,188) (919) 10,331 4 =
52,162 45918 142,285 15,517 160,191
As at 31st December,
R+=A=+—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-BF ZETTHNG ZTTN\F ZTTLF ZTTF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEE 1,771,730 1,498,639 1,537,865 1,153,070 1,156,839
Total liabilities BEE (485,217) (260,507) (317,183) (180,774) (321,116)
1,286,513 1,238,132 1,220,682 972,296 835,723
Equity attributable to: THATEEHER -
Equity holders of the Company RRARERFFAA 1,179,646 1,156,194 1,137,844 972,289 835,723
Non-controlling interests FEPE MR RS 106,867 81,938 82,838 7 -
1,286,513 1,238,132 1,220,682 972,296 835,723
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REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) has reviewed with the senior management
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, discussed auditing and
financial reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010 before they presented the same to the Board for approval.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Shareholders whose name appear on the Company’s register of members on Wednesday, 11 May 2011,
will be eligible for attending and voting at the Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”). The
Company’s register of members will be closed on Wednesday, 11 May 2011, during which no transfer
of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, located at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 9 May 2011.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held in Hong Kong on Wednesday, 11 May 2011. Notice of the
AGM will be issued and disseminated to Shareholders in due course.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to thank the Board, management and all members of our staff for their dedication and
loyalty. I would also like to thank our Shareholders and business associates for their strong support
to the Group.

On behalf of the Board of
SCUD Group Limited
Fang Jin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2011
As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Messrs. Fang Jin, Guo Quan Zeng,

Zhang Li and Ms. Huang Yan being the executive Directors, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and
Mr. Wang Jian Zhang being the independent non-executive Directors
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